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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) was prepared as of March 31, 2014 and 
should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes of 
Concordia Healthcare Corp. (“Concordia” or the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2013, 
which were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).  Amounts 
are stated in thousands of U.S. Dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company, unless otherwise 
noted.   
 
There is no comparative information in this MD&A.  Although the company was incorporated in December 
of 2012 it did not conduct any transactions in 2012 and did not commence operations until May of 2013 
when it acquired its legacy pharmaceutical business from Shionogi, Inc.    
 
Additional information relating to Concordia, including the Company’s Annual Information Form, is 
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.  
 
Some of the statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning 
of applicable Canadian securities legislation.  See “Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” for 
a discussion of risks, uncertainties, and assumptions relating to these statements.  For a description of risks 
relating to the Company, refer to the “Risk Factors” section of this MD&A.     
 
Certain measures used in this MD&A do not have any standardized meaning under IFRS.  When used, 
these measures are defined in such terms as to allow the reconciliation to the closest IFRS measure.  See 
“Selected Financial Information”, “”Results of Operations” and “Non-IFRS Financial Measures”.  
 
Forward-looking Statements 
 
This MD&A may contain forward-looking information.  This forward-looking information is not based on 
historical facts but rather on the expectations of Concordia’s management (“Management”) regarding the 
future growth of the company, its results of operations, performance and business prospects and 
opportunities.  Forward-looking information may include financial and other projections, as well as 
statements regarding future plans, objectives or economic performance, or the assumptions underlying any 
of the foregoing.  This MD&A uses words such as "will", "expects", "anticipates", "intends", "estimates", 
or similar expressions to identify forward-looking information.  Such forward-looking information reflects 
the current beliefs of Management based on information currently available to them. 
 
Forward-looking information included in this MD&A is based in part, on assumptions that may change, 
thus causing actual future results or anticipated events to differ materially from those expressed or implied 
in any forward-looking information.  Such assumptions include that: 
 

• Concordia will sustain or increase profitability, and will be able to fund its operations with 
existing capital, and/or it will be able to raise additional capital to fund future acquisitions;  

• Concordia will be able to attract and retain key personnel;  
• Concordia will be able to acquire any necessary technology, products or businesses and effectively 

integrate such acquisitions;  
• Concordia will be successful in developing and clinically testing products under development;  
• Concordia will be successful in obtaining all necessary approvals for commercialization of its 

products from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, the Canadian Therapeutic Products 
Directorate or other regulatory authorities;  

• The results of continuing and future safety and efficacy studies by industry and government 
agencies relating to Concordia’s products will be favorable;  

• Concordia’s products will not be adversely impacted by competitive products and pricing;  
• Raw materials and finished products necessary for CHI’s products will continue to be available; 
• Concordia will be able to maintain and enforce the protection afforded by any patents or other 

intellectual property rights;  
• Concordia’s products will be successfully licensed to third parties to market and distribute such 

products on favorable terms;  
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• Concordia’s key strategic alliances, out licensing and partnering arrangements, now and in the 
future, will remain in place and in force; the general regulatory environment will not change in a 
manner adverse to the business of Concordia;  

• the tax treatment of Concordia and its subsidiary will remain constant and the Company will not 
become subject to any material legal proceedings.   

 
Management cautions that the foregoing list of assumptions is not exhaustive.  Forward-looking 
information involves known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual 
results, performance or achievements of the Company to differ materially from any future results, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking information.  Actual results, 
performance or achievement could differ materially from that expressed in, or implied by, any forward-
looking information in this release, and, accordingly, investors should not place undue reliance on any such 
forward-looking information.  Further, any forward-looking information speaks only as of the date on 
which such statement is made and the Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking 
information to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law including 
applicable securities laws.  New factors emerge from time to time and the importance of current factors 
may change from time to time and it is not possible for Management to predict all of such factors, changes 
in such factors and to assess in advance the impact of each such factor on the business of Concordia or the 
extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from 
those contained in any forward-looking information contained in this MD&A. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
In preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements, Management is required to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during 
the reporting periods.   
 
Significant estimates made by Management include: gross to net deductions; allowance for doubtful 
accounts; useful lives of amortizable tangible and intangible assets; weighted average cost of capital; 
determining the fair value of share-based payments and the provision for income taxes and realizability of 
deferred tax assets. On an ongoing basis, Management reviews its estimates to ensure that these estimates 
appropriately reflect changes in the Company’s business and new information as it becomes available.  If 
historical experience and other factors used by Management to make these estimates do not reasonably 
reflect future activity, the Company’s consolidated financial statements could be materially impacted. 
 
Chargebacks 
The provision for chargebacks is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of revenue. In 
the USA, Concordia sells its products directly to wholesale distributors. The wholesale distributors sell 
directly to independent pharmacies, managed care organizations, hospitals and group purchasing 
organizations (“indirect customers”). The difference between the price that Concordia sells to the 
wholesaler and the price the wholesaler sells to the indirect customer is referred to as a chargeback. The 
provision for chargebacks is calculated based upon historical experience. As sales are made to large 
wholesale customers, Concordia continually monitors the provision for chargebacks and makes adjustments 
when it believes that actual chargebacks may differ from estimated provisions. 
 
Returns 
The provision for returns is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of revenue. 
Concordia has a returns policy that allows wholesalers to return the product within a specified period prior 
to and subsequent to the expiration date. Provisions for returns are recognized in the period in which the 
underlying sales are recognized, as a reduction of sales revenue. Concordia estimates provisions for returns 
based upon historical experience, which represents Management’s best estimate.  Concordia continually 
monitors provisions for returns and makes adjustments when it believes that actual product returns may 
differ from established reserves. 
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Rebates 
The provision for rebates is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of revenue. Rebates 
are granted to healthcare authorities and under contractual arrangements with certain customers. Products 
sold in the USA are covered by various programs (such as Medicaid and Medicare) under which products 
are sold at a discount.  Concordia estimates its provisions for rebates based on current contractual terms and 
conditions as well as the historical experience, changes to business practices and credit terms.  Concordia 
continually monitors the provision for rebates and makes adjustments when it believes that actual rebates 
may differ from establishes provisions. All rebates are recognized in the period in which the underlying 
sales are recognized as a reduction of sales revenue. 
 
Other price adjustments 
The provision for other price adjustments is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of 
revenue. Other price adjustments are credits issued by the wholesaler to reflect various decreases in the 
selling price. The price that Concordia sells to the Wholesaler is known as the Wholesale Acquisition Cost 
(“WAC”).  Decreases to WAC are discretionary decisions made by the wholesalers to reflect competitive 
market conditions. Amounts recorded for other price adjustments are based upon estimated declines in 
market prices. Concordia regularly monitors these and other factors and re-evaluates the provision as 
additional information becomes available. 
 
Share-based compensation 
IFRS 2 requires that each installment of options be treated as a separate share option grant with graded-
vesting features, forfeitures are estimated at time of grant and revised if actual forfeitures are likely to differ 
from previous estimates and options granted to parties other than employees are measured at their fair 
values.   Share-based compensation is recognized as compensation in the statement of comprehensive 
earnings based on their fair values at the time of the grant, with the compensation expense amortized over 
the vesting period for the grantee.  Concordia uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to price its 
options in computing share based compensation, which requires certain assumptions on numerous variables 
including the stock price volatility rate for a privately held corporation.  Due to the absence of a company 
specific volatility rate, the Company chose comparable rates to other companies in the pharmaceutical 
industry.   The selection of a different option pricing model (binomial model) and a different volatility rate 
could produce a different value for share based compensation, which could impact results.  
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company reviews amortized non-financial assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may be impaired. The Company also reviews, 
on an annual basis, non-financial assets with indefinite life for impairment. If the recoverable amount of the 
respective non-financial assets is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be impaired. In the 
process of measuring the recoverable amount, Management makes assumptions about future events and 
circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause significant adjustments.  
 
Income taxes 
Concordia is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions and therefore use judgment to determine the 
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 
is uncertain. Provisions for uncertain tax positions are recorded based on Management’s estimate of the 
most likely outcome. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were 
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in 
the period that such determination is made. 
 
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 
The fair values of derivative instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using 
valuation techniques. Concordia uses judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that 
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. The use of different 
assumptions may cause actual results to vary and may cause significant adjustments. 
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Company Overview 
 
Concordia Healthcare Corp. is an integrated healthcare company with three operating segments: 
 

1. The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division 
 
The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division focuses on the management and acquisition of legacy 
pharmaceutical products, both with patent life and exclusivity remaining (pre-legacy) and products 
that have reached full maturity but continue on a predictable revenue generation path, collectively 
referred to as legacy pharmaceutical products. Regardless of stage of the life cycle the targeted 
products have a well-established record of safety and efficacy and a history of stable, predictable 
prescription demand.  The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division acquired its legacy pharmaceutical 
business assets from Shionogi Inc. (“Shionogi”) on May 6, 2013.  
 

2. The Orphan Drugs Division 
 
The Orphan Drugs Division is intended to provide growth opportunities through the expansion 
into new indications for existing products or the acquisition of approved orphan drugs and further 
expansion within their identified markets and new indications.  The operations of the Company’s 
Orphan Drugs Division were created through the acquisition of Pinnacle Biologics Inc. 
(“Pinnacle”) on December 20, 2013.   
 

3. The Specialty Healthcare Distribution Division 
 
The Speciality Healthcare Distribution Division is a nation-wide provider of diabetes testing 
supplies, pharmaceuticals, diabetic shoes, orthotic braces and other home medical equipment in 
the United States.  The Specialty Healthcare Distribution Division acquired its specialty healthcare 
distribution business assets from Global Medical Direct LLC and affiliated entities (collectively 
“Global”) on October 25, 2013.  The acquisition had an effective date of August 1, 2013.  
Global’s results have been consolidated from August 1, 2013 in the financial statements of 
Concordia.   
 

These three business units are run as separate divisions but are inter-related. The cash-flow from legacy 
pharmaceutical products is used to fund operations, provide capital for future acquisitions and is also 
intended to fund the development of new indications for orphan drugs. The specialized healthcare 
distribution division provides additional growth and cash-flow generation. Additionally, through its 
registered pharmacy operation, this business is intended to provide a distribution capability for specialty 
drugs once acquired and/or developed. All three of these divisions are operated through a corporate 
organization that provides executive leadership, industry experience and financial and capital markets 
experience. 
 
These three divisions are identified as reportable segments under IFRS for the purposes of disclosure in the 
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements.   
 
History 
 
Qualifying Transaction 
 
On December 20, 2013 the Company entered into an amalgamation agreement (the “Amalgamation 
Agreement”) and completed its qualifying transaction (the “Qualifying Transaction”).  The Qualifying 
Transaction proceeded by way of a “three-cornered” amalgamation among Mercari Acquisition Corp. 
(“Mercari”), a capital pool company listed on the NEX board of the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”) 
Venture Exchange, Mercari Subco Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mercari, and Concordia Healthcare 
Inc., (“CHI”), a private Ontario corporation incorporated on December 5, 2013.  On December 18, 2013, 
and prior to the completion of the Qualifying Transaction, Mercari changed its name to “Concordia 
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Healthcare Corp.” and completed a consolidation of its share capital on a basis of one post-consolidation 
common share for every 48.08 common shares existing immediately before the consolidation. The 
Qualifying Transaction resulted in a reverse takeover of Mercari by the shareholders of CHI (the “Reverse 
Takeover”).   
 
After the Qualifying Transaction, the shareholders of CHI held 98.5% of the shares of the amalgamated 
corporation, and for accounting purposes CHI has been deemed the acquirer.  The Qualifying Transaction 
constitutes a reverse takeover but does not meet the definition of a business combination under 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 3; accordingly the Company has accounted for the 
transaction in accordance with IFRS 2.  The assets and liabilities of Mercari have been included in the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheet at fair value, which approximate their pre-combination carrying 
values.  
 
Mercari’s shares were delisted from the NEX board of the TSX Venture Exchange.  Concordia Healthcare 
Corp.’s shares were listed for trading on the TSX under the symbol “CXR” on December 24, 2013. 
 
Financings and Acquisitions 
 
Term Facilities 
 
On May 6 2013, CHI entered into two loan and security agreements: (1) a loan under a senior loan 
agreement (the “Senior Loan Agreement”) in the principal amount of $19.0 million bearing interest at 
12% per annum, calculated daily, maturing on October 30, 2015 with interest paid monthly in arrears, and 
(2) two loans under a subordinate loan agreement (the “Subordinate Loan Agreement”) in the aggregate 
principal amount of $5.15 million bearing interest at 18% per annum, calculated daily, maturing on October 
30, 2015 with interest paid monthly in arrears only if the loan under the Senior Loan Agreement is repaid.  
The Senior Loan Agreement included a working capital loan of $3.0 million where the interest rate was 
12%. The working capital loan was repaid and cancelled on August 7, 2013.    
 
Credit Facility 
 
On September 19, 2013 the Company entered into a senior secured revolving credit facility (the 
“Revolving Facility”) in the principal amount of $3.0 million.  The revolving credit facility is for working 
capital requirements and is repayable on demand.  Loans under the Revolving Facility are repayable 
without any prepayment penalties, and bear interest at a floating rate based on the HSBC’s US Base Rate 
plus 2.25% per annum.   
 
Acquisitions 
 
Concordia Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“CPI”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired its legacy 
pharmaceutical business assets from Shionogi on May 6, 2013. These legacy pharmaceutical assets are 
comprised of three FDA approved drugs: Kapvay, which is used to effectively treat Attention Deficit 
Hyperactivity Disorder (“ADHD”), Ulesfia, which is a topical treatment for pediculosis (head lice), and 
Orapred, an anti-inflammatory used in the treatment of certain pulmonary diseases such as asthma. The 
purchase price paid to Shionogi was $28.7 million and included $25.6 million paid for the Existing 
Portfolio, $2.3 million paid for the inventory including raw material, work in process and finished goods 
and $0.8 million in contingent consideration, subject to meeting certain performance metrics.  
 
Concordia Healthcare (USA) Inc. (“CHUSA”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired its 
specialty healthcare distribution business assets from Global on October 25, 2013 with an effective date of 
August 1, 2013. The Company’s specialty healthcare distribution business is a United States national 
Internet and mail-order provider of diabetes testing supplies, pharmaceuticals, diabetic shoes, orthotic 
braces and other HME. This business also includes a full-service pharmacy with full fulfillment capacity 
and can ship medications across the United States.  The Company acquired the specialty healthcare 
distribution business for total consideration of $13.2 million comprised of $5.0 million in cash, a vendor 
note with a fair value on the date of acquisition of $5.6 million and an additional earn-out payment with an 
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estimated present value on the date of acquisition of $2.6 million payable in Common Shares subject to 
meeting certain performance metrics.  In addition, 1 million common shares of the Company at US$3.00 
per share were issued as finder’s fees in connection with the acquisition of the Specialty Healthcare 
Distribution Division. 
  
On December 19, 2013 CHI completed a private placement (the “Private Placement”) of subscription 
receipts (the “Subscription Receipts”) conducted by a syndicate of agents. Pursuant to the Private 
Placement, CHI issued 5,520,000 Subscription Receipts at a price of $6.25 Canadian Dollars (“CAD”) per 
Subscription Receipt for total gross proceeds to the Company of CAD $34.5 million. Each Subscription 
Receipt was exchanged for one common share of CHI, which common shares were then exchanged for 
Common Shares of Concordia Healthcare Corp. on a one-for-one basis pursuant to the Qualifying 
Transaction.  
 
Concordia Labs Inc. (“CLI”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Concordia, holds certain legacy 
pharmaceuticals that have the potential to, through further development, be used to treat additional 
indications, specifically those indications that may qualify for orphan drug status. On November 8, 2013 
the Company entered into the Pinnacle Purchase Agreement.  Pursuant to the Pinnacle Purchase 
Agreement, on December 20, 2013, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Pinnacle for total 
consideration of $58.0 million comprised of $32.7 million of cash consideration, $5.0 million of CHI’s 
common shares issued at a price of $5.63 per common share (being a 10% discount to the CAD $6.25 per 
Subscription Receipt issued as part of the Private Placement), 10 annual cash payments with an estimated 
present value of $5.0 million and milestone and other contingency payments with an estimated value of 
$15.3 million. The acquisition of Pinnacle was financed through a combination of available cash, which 
included net proceeds of CAD $34.5 million received by the Company through the Private Placement of 
Subscription Receipts of CHI, which closed on December 19, 2013. 
 
Recent Events 
 
Financing 
 
On March 11, 2014 the Company announced the completion of a short-form prospectus offering, on a 
“bought deal” basis of 5,750,000 common shares of Concordia, which includes the exercise by the 
Underwriters of an over-allotment option of 15%, for aggregate gross proceeds of CAD $67,562,500.  Net 
proceeds to the Company, after the deduction of underwriters’ fees were CAD $63,508,750.   
 
The Offering was completed at a price per Common Share of CAD $11.75 by a syndicate of underwriters 
co-led by GMP Securities L.P. and Canaccord Genuity Corp. and including Barclays Capital Canada Inc., 
Beacon Securities Limited and Cormark Securities Inc. 
 
Acquisition of Donnatal®  
 
On March 20, 2014 the Company announced that it has entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 
Donnatal®, an adjunctive therapy in the treatment of irritable bowel syndrome (“IBS”) and acute 
enterocolitis, from a privately held specialty pharmaceutical company carrying on business as Revive 
Pharmaceuticals (“Revive Pharmaceuticals”). 
 
The Company has agreed to acquire Donnatal® for $200 million in cash and an aggregate of 4,605,833 
common shares of Concordia.  The common shares issuable have an aggregate value of approximately 
US$65.3 million based on the closing trading price of the Company’s common shares on the Toronto Stock 
Exchange on March 18, 2014, and represent approximately 16.19% of the Company’s outstanding common 
shares on a non-diluted basis (approximately 14.99% on a fully-diluted basis) after giving effect to the 
acquisition.  Revive Pharmaceuticals will also be entitled to have a representative nominated to the board of 
directors of the Company provided that it maintains a certain shareholding level in the Company.  
Completion of the acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions (including approval of the TSX), 
and acceptable financing.  
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Management anticipates that the deal will close in the second quarter of 2014.  Management plans to pay 
for the cash component of the acquisition through a combination of available cash and debt 
financing.  Accordingly, the Company has entered into a commitment letter with GE Capital, Healthcare 
Financial Services and its affiliated entities (“GE”).  Pursuant to the commitment letter, GE has agreed to 
provide a secured credit facility having a principal amount of up to $195 million, consisting of a 
$170 million term loan and a $25 million operating line (the “Credit Facility”).  The Credit Facility will be 
secured by the assets of the Company and the assets of its subsidiaries.  The Credit Facility is subject to a 
number of customary conditions, including entering into definitive documentation. 
 
Repayment of Debt 
 
On March 28, 2014 the Company repaid in full its senior and subordinate debt.   
 
Selected Annual Financial Information 
 
The following table sets forth selected financial information for Concordia for the year ended December 
31, 2013.  
 

 
 
 

Notes: 
 
(1) Represents a non-IFRS measure.  For the relevant definitions and reconciliation to reported results, see “Non-IFRS Financial 
Measures”.  
 
 
 

2013

Revenue 40,447       
Gross profit 32,109       
Operating income 13,985       
Net income 2,431         

Basic EPS 0.38$         
Fully Diluted EPS 0.38$         

Total Assets 170,765      
Total Liabilities 109,243      

EBITDA (1) 9,376         
Adjusted EBITDA (1) 21,169       



PAGE 10         CONCORDIA HEALTHCARE CORP

[10] 
 

 

 
Results of Operations – Year ended December 31, 2013 
 
The following table sets forth the consolidated results of operations of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2013: 
 

 
 

Notes: 
 
(1) Represents a non-IFRS measure.  For the relevant definitions and reconciliation to reported results, see “Non-IFRS Financial 
Measures”.  
 
 
Factors Affecting Results from Operations 
 
Revenue and Gross Profit 
 
The following table sets forth revenue and gross profit by Operating Segment for the year ended December 
31, 2013: 
 

2013

Revenue 40,447$                    
Cost of sales 8,338                        
Gross profit 32,109                      

Operating expenses
General & administrative 8,476                        
Selling 2,464                        
Share based compensation 1,070                        
Exchange listing expenses 2,404                        
Business acquisition related costs 3,692                        
Depreciation expense 18                            

Total operating expenses 18,124                      

Operating income 13,985                      

Other income and expense
Interest expense 6,382                        
Change in fair value of convertible warrants 4,648                        
Other (income) expense 99                            

Profit Before Tax 2,856                        

Income Taxes 425                          

Net Income 2,431$                      

EBITDA (1) 9,376$                      
Adjusted EBITDA (1) 21,169$                    
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Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division 
 
Net revenues for the Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division were $36.9 million for the year ended December 31, 
2013 and related to the sales of Kapvay, Orapred ODT, Orapred OS and Ulesfia after subtracting 
deductions from Gross Sales such as chargebacks, returns and allowances, rebates and other deductions that 
are customary in the industry.  
 
Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $7.4 million and reflect the costs of active 
pharmaceutical ingredients, excipients, packaging and freight costs and royalties. 
 
Gross Profit for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $29.5 million. 
 
Orphan Drugs Division 
 
The operations of Concordia’s Orphan Drugs Division commenced on December 20, 2013 with the 
acquisition of Pinnacle Biologics Inc.  As a result, there were no material revenues, profits or expenses 
incurred in this reportable segment for the year ended December 31, 2013.  
 
Specialty Healthcare Distribution Division 
 
Net revenues for the Specialty Healthcare Distribution division were $3.6 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 and related primarily to sales and distribution of diabetes testing supplies and orthotics 
for diabetic patients.   
 
Costs of sales for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $0.9 million and reflect the cost of products, 
warehousing and freight.   
 
Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $2.6 million.  
 
General and Administrative Expenses 
 
General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $8.5 million and reflect 
the costs related to salaries and benefits, professional and consulting fees, transition services agreement 
expenses, travel, facility leases and other administrative expenditures.  General and administrative expenses 
also include the costs incurred by the Company’s Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division for regulatory 
compliance costs for the pharmaceutical industry and drug safety (pharmacovigilence).     
 
Selling 
 
Selling expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $2.5 million and reflect costs incurred in the 
marketing, promotion and selling of the Company’s legacy pharmaceutical products and the Company’s 
diabetic testing and orthotic products.  
 
Share Based Compensation 
 
Share based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1.1 million and relates to 
the fair value of share based payment awards to management and directors of the Company.  The fair value 
is calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.  Assumptions that affect the application of the 

Legacy 
Pharmaceuticals

Orphan 
Drugs

Specialty 
Healthcare 

Distribution
FY 2013

Revenue 36,884$               10$               3,553$             40,447$           
Cost of sales (including royalties) 7,391                   34                913                 8,338              
Gross profit 29,493$               (24)$             2,640$             32,109$           
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fair value model include the determination of volatility of the Company’s common shares, risk-free interest 
rate and the life of the options issued.  
 
Exchange Listing Expenses 
 
Exchange listing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $2.4 million and reflect the costs of 
CHI’s Reverse Takeover transaction (as described above) and subsequent listing of Concordia Healthcare 
Corp. on the TSX.  Exchange listing expenses include $1.6m related to the value of the Company’s shares 
issued in exchange for 100% of the shares of Mercari Acquisition Corp. 
 
Acquisition Related Costs 
 
Acquisition related costs for year ended December 31, 2013 were $3.7 million and relate to legal, 
accounting and professional fees directly incurred by the Company for the acquisition of the legacy 
pharmaceutical assets from Shionogi, the acquisition of assets from Global, and the acquisition of Pinnacle 
Biologics Inc.  Acquisition related costs also include the value of 1,000,000 common shares of CHI issued 
at $3.00 per share for finder’s fees related to the acquisition of Global.   
 
Interest Expense 
 
Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $6.4 million and is primarily related to interest 
and accretion interest incurred on the Company’s Term facilities as described above.  Interest expense for 
the year was $2.1 million and the Company also incurred $4.3 million in accretion interest related to the 
Term Facilities.  Please see “Indebtedness –Term Facilities” for a detailed description.  
 
On March 28, 2014 the Company repaid in full its senior and subordinate debt.  The agreements require 
minimum interest payments regardless of the date of repayment.  
 
Change in Fair Value of Convertible Warrants 
 
Change in fair value of convertible warrants was $4.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.  The 
Company issued convertible warrants in connection with entering into the Term Facilities described above.  
The warrants were converted to common shares during the period.  The expense of $4.6 million relates to 
the increase in value of the warrants from the date of initial issuance to the date of exercise.  Please see 
“Indebtedness –Term Facilities” for a detailed description of the warrants.  
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Results of Operations – Quarter ended December 31, 2013 
 
Factors Affecting Results from Operations 
 
Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division 
 
Net revenues for the Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division were $13.1 million for the quarter ended December 
31, 2013 and related to the sales of Kapvay, Orapred ODT, Orapred OS and Ulesfia after subtracting 
deductions from Gross Sales such as chargebacks, returns and allowances, rebates and other deductions that 
are customary in the industry.  Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $3.1 million and 
reflect the costs of active pharmaceutical ingredients, excipients, packaging and freight costs and royalties.  
Gross Profit for the quarter ended December 31, 2013 was $10.0 million.  In the fourth quarter of 2013, as 
expected by management, a generic product to Kapvay entered the market.   
 
The Company’s Orphan Drugs and Specialty Healthcare Distribution segments were added during the 
fourth quarter of 2014.  Also, the factors affecting results from operations relating to operating expenses 
and other income and expenses are largely consistent with the discussion included above.  As a result, for a 
discussion regarding the primary factors affecting the results from operations for the fourth quarter of 2014 
please see “Results of Operations – Year ended December 31, 2013” above.  
 
Significant Events 
 
As discussed above, the Company completed the acquisitions of Global and Pinnacle during the fourth 
quarter of 2013.  The company also completed the Reverse Takeover of Mercari and a private placement of 
subscription receipts.  For a detailed description of these events please see “History – Qualifying 
Transaction” and “History – Financings and Acquisitions” above. 
 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
Cash Flows 
 
Management believes that ongoing operations and associated cash flow, in addition to cash resources on 
hand and available New Credit Facility, provide sufficient liquidity to support Concordia’s business 
operations for at least the next 12 months.    
 
As at December 31, 2013 the Company held cash and cash equivalents of $42.9 million and had an 
additional $3.0 million available from the Revolving Facility, which provides further flexibility to meet any 
unanticipated cash requirements.  
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities.  The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure. 
Accounts payable are all due within the current operating period. 
 
In managing the Company’s capital, Management estimates future cash requirements by preparing a budget 
and a multi-year plan for review and approval by the Company’s Board of Directors.  The budget 
establishes the approved activities for the upcoming year and estimates the costs associated with those 
activities. The multi-year plan estimates future activity along with the potential cash requirements and is 
based upon Management’s assessment of current progress along with the expected results from the coming 
years’ activity. Budget to actual variances are prepared and reviewed by management and are presented 
quarterly to the Board. 
 
The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all the financial 
commitments and obligations of Concordia as they come due.  Since inception Concordia has financed its 
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cash requirements primarily through the issuances of securities, short-term borrowings, medium-term debt 
as well as income from operations.   
 
The below table sets forth the Company’s net cash flows provided by and used in operating, investing and 
financing activities: 
 

 
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
 
Net cash provided by operating activities was $49.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 and was 
driven by the operations of the Legacy Pharmaceuticals division.   
 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 
 
Net cash used in investing activities was $59.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 and was 
primarily due to cash payments, net of cash acquired, of: 
 

• $27.9 million related to the acquisition of three FDA approved drugs from Shionogi; 
• $3.6 million related to the acquisition of Global; and 
• $27.8 million related to the acquisition of Pinnacle Biologics, Inc.  

 
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 
 
Net cash provided by financing activities was $52.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 and was 
primarily driven by net proceeds from issuance of common stock of $39.1 million and proceeds from the 
Senior Loan Agreement and the Subordinate Loan Agreement of $21.15 million.  The company made 
principal repayments against the Senior Loan Agreement of $5.4 million during the year ended December 
31, 2013.  
 
Indebtedness 
 
Term Facilities and Warrants 
 
On May 6 2013, the Company entered into the Senior Loan Agreement and the Subordinate Loan 
Agreement.     
 
The debt features mandatory repayments based on free cash flow generated by the business as defined in 
the Senior Loan Agreement and the Subordinate Loan Agreement, calculated monthly.  The loans are 
subject to a prepayment feature and repayment on demand at any time should certain events of default 
occur.  For the period ended December 31, 2013 no such defaults occurred.  The Company has granted 
security over all of its assets.   
 
In connection with the transaction, the lenders were also issued warrants exercisable for an aggregate of 
1,875,000 common shares of Concordia at an exercise price of CAD $1.00 for a period of 5 years.  The 
warrants also provided for a cashless exercise option in which the settlement price would be calculated 

2013

Net cash provided by operating activities 49,863$      

Net cash used in investing activities (59,366)      

Net cash provided by financing activities 52,402       

Increase in Cash 42,899$      

Beginning Cash -              
Ending Cash 42,899$      
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using the volume weighted average trading price of the Company’s common shares on the TSX for the 
three-day period immediately prior to the date of exercise.  Warrants issued to the lender were initially 
valued at $4.5 million and recorded as a derivative financial instrument.  On October 25, 2013, additional 
warrants were issued to one of the lenders exercisable for an aggregate of 39,465 common shares of 
Concordia.  These warrants were exercisable for a period of 5 years at an exercise price of US $3.00, and 
contained a similar cashless exercise option. These additional warrants were valued at $0.076 million and 
recorded as a derivative financial instrument.  
 
On December 20, 2013, immediately prior to the Company’s listing on the TSX, all of the warrants were 
exercised by the warrant holders under the cashless exercise option.  The settlement price of the cashless 
exercise was CAD $6.25, representing the opening per share price of the Company’s stock upon its listing 
on the TSX.  Upon the cashless exercise, the warrants were revalued to their fair market value, which was 
calculated as $9.3 million.  The increase in fair market value of the warrants from their initial valuations 
was recorded as an expense of $4.6 million.   
 
The two loan and security agreements have been segregated into their respective debt and warrant 
components, the debt component representing the present value of the debt, and the warrant derivative 
financial instrument representing the fair value of the warrants.  The debt component is accreted to the face 
value of the loan over the expected life of the loan using the effective interest method.  The debt component 
of the loan is presented net of financing costs of $1,100.  The financing costs are recognized as an expense 
over the term of the loan.  Financing and accretion expense amount to $1.9 million and $4.3 million 
respectively for the year ended December 31, 2013.  The effective interest rate has been determined to be 
51.32%. 
 
At December 31, 2013, the fair value of the long-term debt approximates its carrying value of $15.0 
million. 
 
Long-term debt as at December 31, 2013 is summarized as follows: 

 
 
Credit Facility 
 
On September 19, 2013 the Company entered into a senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving 
Facility”) in the principal amount of $3.0 million.  
 
Pursuant to the Revolving Facility, the Company has granted security over all of its assets. 
 
The Company has not borrowed against this facility and there is no balance outstanding against this facility 
as at December 31, 2013. 
 

As at December 31, 
2013

Face value of the loans on issuance 21,150$                       
Less:
Fair value of warrants issued (4,607)                          
Transaction costs (1,100)                          
Book value upon issuance 15,443                         
Repayment of principal (5,408)                          
Accretion interest 4,287                           
Carrying value at December 31, 2013 14,322                         
Accrued interest 644                              
Senior and Subordinate Debt 14,966$                     
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Contractual Obligations 
 
The following table summarizes Concordia’s material contractual obligations as at December 31, 2013: 
 

 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
The Company has related party relationships with its subsidiaries and key management personnel.  Key 
management personnel include the Board of Directors, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer and the Managing Director of CPI.   
 
The below table sets forth details of the transactions between the Company and related parties: 
 
 

 
 

(a) Compensation includes salaries, bonuses and directors fees. 
(b) This includes the amortised cost of the share-based compensation issued during the period. 
(c) Legal fees include professional services for advice relating to intellectual property, corporate securities and 

other matters. 
(d) This relate to fees and interest paid for a loan, where two of the directors were officers of the lender. The 

loan for $3 million was repaid during the period. 
 

Contingencies 
 
Following the closing of the Shionogi Transaction as additional consideration for the sale, transfer, 
conveyance and assignment of the assets and the grant of the Ulesfia license, the Company is required to 
pay Shionogi thirty percent (30%) of worldwide net sales of Kapvay that exceeds $1.5 million (in the 
aggregate) during each calendar quarter commencing with the calendar quarter beginning October 1, 2013 
until such payments equal $6.0 million in the aggregate. 
 
As part of the consideration for the Global Medical Direct Transaction, the Company is obligated to pay an 
additional earn-out payment of up to $4.0 million payable in Common Shares subject to meeting certain 
performance metrics.  The earn-out payment provisions provide that on each earn-out calculation date, if 
the aggregate adjusted EBITDA of Global exceeds $7.0 million for the preceding year then an earn-out 
payment of common shares will be made which is equal in value to the aggregate adjusted EBITDA of 
Global for the preceding year multiplied by 14.285714%.  The number of common shares to be paid is 
calculated by dividing the dollar value of the earn-out payment by the dollar volume weighted average 
trading price of the Company’s common shares. The aggregate earn-out payments are subject to a $4.0 

TOTAL 2014 2015 2015 2015 2015 Thereafter
Debt 14,451$        14,451$        -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                
Finance Lease Obligations 36                36                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Operating Leases 573              354              98                88                25                8                  -                  
Purcashe Obligations 2,300            772              768              760              -                  -                  -                  
Research Grants 1,157            815              342              -                  -                  -                  -                  
Total Contractual Obligations 18,517$        16,428$        1,208$          848$             25$              8$                -$                

year ended December 31, 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2013

Compensation of key management and directors(a) 1,192$                
Share based compensation (b) 979                    
Legal fees paid or payable to firms affiliated with directors (c) 139                    
Finance fees paid to firms affiliated with directors (d) 150                    
Interest costs paid and payable to firms affiliated with directors (d) 98                     

2,558$                
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million cap. 
 
As part of the consideration for the Pinnacle Biologics Inc. Transaction, the Company is obligated to pay 
additional payments of up to $5.0 million based on the achievement of certain milestones related to clinical 
trials.  The Company is also obligated to pay additional earn-out payments equal to 15% of worldwide sales 
of Photofrin in excess of $25.0 million over the 10 calendar years following the Company’s acquisition of 
Pinnacle.   
 
Royalties 
 
The Company has a commitment to pay royalties on sales of each of the drugs acquired as part of the 
Shionogi Transaction at certain prescribed rates.  These royalties are payable on a quarterly basis.  
 
Guarantees 
 
All directors and officers of the Company, and each of the Company’s various subsidiaries, are indemnified 
by the Company for various items including, but not limited to, all costs to settle lawsuits or actions due to 
their association with the Company, subject to certain restrictions.  The Company has purchased directors’ 
and officers’ liability insurance to mitigate the cost of any potential future lawsuits or actions.  
 
In the normal course of business, the Company has entered into agreements that include indemnities in 
favor of third parties, such as purchase and sale agreements, confidentiality agreements, engagement letters 
with advisors and consultants, leasing contracts, license agreements, information technology agreements 
and various product, service, data hosting and network access agreements. These indemnification 
arrangements may require the applicable Concordia entity to compensate counterparties for losses incurred 
by the counterparties as a result of breaches in representations, covenants and warranties provided by the 
particular Concordia entity or as a result of litigation or other third party claims or statutory sanctions that 
may be suffered by the counterparties as a consequence of the relevant transaction. 
 
Litigation and Arbitration 
 
In the normal course of business the Company may be the subject of litigation claims.   As at December 31, 
2013 there are no claims against the Company. 
 
Risk Factors 
 
The following sets forth certain risks and uncertainties that could have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s business, financial condition and/or results of operations.  Additional risks and uncertainties 
that the Company is not presently aware of, or that the Company currently deems immaterial, may also 
impair Concordia’s business operations.  The risks described below address the material factors that may 
affect Concordia’s future operating results and financial performance. 
 
The Company has a limited operating history 
 
Concordia was formed in December, 2012, and acquired the Legacy Products, durable medical equipment 
products and Pinnacle in 2013. Concordia had no operations prior to acquiring such assets. The Company 
had no operations prior to acquiring CHI.  The Company’s lack of operating history may make it difficult 
for investors to evaluate the Company’s prospects for success and its ability to make cash distributions to 
shareholders of the Company. There is no assurance that the Company will continue to be successful and 
the likelihood of ongoing success must be considered in light of its relatively early stage of operations. 
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The Company has grown at a very rapid pace. The Company’s inability to properly manage or support this 
growth could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations and could cause the market value of the Common Shares to decline 
 
The Company’s rapid growth has put significant demands on the Company’s processes, systems and 
personnel. The Company has made and expects to make further investments in additional personnel, 
systems and internal control processes to help manage its growth. If the Company is unable to successfully 
manage and support its rapid growth and the challenges and difficulties associated with managing a larger, 
more complex business, this could cause a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial 
position and results of operations, and the market value of the Common Shares could decline. 
 
The Company relies on third parties to manufacture the Company’s products 
 
The Company does not have the internal capability to manufacture pharmaceutical products and relies on 
third parties to manufacture its products. The Company currently relies on a distinct single source for the 
manufacture of each of its pharmaceutical products. The Company cannot be certain that manufacturing 
sources will continue to be available or that the Company can continue to out-source the manufacturing of 
the Company’s products on reasonable or acceptable terms. Any loss of a manufacturer or any difficulties 
that could arise in the manufacturing process could significantly affect the Company’s inventories and 
supply of products available for sale. If the Company is unable to supply sufficient amounts of its products 
to its customers on a timely basis, the Company’s market share could decrease and, correspondingly, the 
Company’s revenues could decrease. 
 
All of the Company’s contract manufacturers must comply with the applicable FDA regulations, which 
include quality control and quality assurance requirements, as well as the corresponding maintenance of 
records and documentation and manufacture of products according to the specifications contained in the 
applicable regulatory file. If the Company’s contract manufacturers do not or cannot comply with these 
requirements, the availability of marketed products for sale could be reduced. 
 
If the Company encounters delays or difficulties with contract manufacturers, packagers or distributors, 
sales of the Company’s products could be delayed. If the Company changes the source or location of 
supply or modifies the manufacturing process, regulatory authorities will require the Company to 
demonstrate that the product produced by the new source or from the modified process is equivalent to the 
product used in any clinical trials that were conducted. If the Company is unable to demonstrate this 
equivalence, the Company will be unable to manufacture products from the new source or location of 
supply, or use the modified process, the Company may incur substantial expenses in order to ensure 
equivalence, and it may harm the Company’s ability to generate revenues. 
 
The Company may pursue strategic partnerships, including product supply arrangements with certain 
manufacturers which would be expected to yield significant revenue to the Company. The aforementioned 
risks associated with a distinct single-source manufacturer for each pharmaceutical product can also 
therefore present significant risks to the Company’s revenue stream. 
 
If the Company’s supply of finished products for one of its products is interrupted, the Company’s ability to 
maintain inventory levels could suffer and future revenues may be delayed and/or not realized 
 
Supply interruptions may occur and the Company’s inventory may not always be adequate. Numerous 
factors could cause interruptions in the supply of the Company’s finished products, including failure to 
have a third-party supply chain validated in a timely manner, shortages in raw material required by the 
Company’s manufacturers, changes in the Company’s sources for manufacturing, the Company’s failure to 
timely locate and obtain replacement manufacturers as needed and conditions affecting the cost and 
availability of raw materials. 
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The Company’s Legacy Pharmaceutical Division derives all of its revenue from sales of a limited number 
of products 
 
The Company’s Legacy Pharmaceutical Division currently derives all of its revenue from sales of three 
legacy products and revenue from these products is expected to continue to account for all of the Legacy 
Pharmaceutical Division’s revenue in the near term, unless the Company acquires other legacy products. 
Accordingly, if demand for any of the Legacy Products declines significantly, the business, financial 
condition and operating results of the Company’s Legacy Pharmaceutical Division would be adversely 
affected. 
 
The Company’s planned pricing increases could negatively impact demand for the Legacy Products 
 
The Company may increase the prices at which it sells its Legacy Products. There can be no assurances that 
sales of the Legacy Products will be unaffected by these pricing increases. If the pricing increases 
negatively affect demand for any of the Legacy Products, the Company’s business, financial condition and 
operating results would be adversely affected. In addition, there can be no assurances that increased 
expenditures on marketing and promotion will translate into increased sales of the Legacy Products. 
Increased expenditures on promotional efforts without corresponding increases in sales would adversely 
affect the Company’s financial and operating results. 
 
The expiration of core patent protection for Kapvay and Orapred could result in significant competition 
from generic products resulting in a significant reduction in sales 
 
The patent protecting the Company’s Kapvay product has expired and the Orapred patents will shortly 
expire, which could result in significant competition from generic products and could result in a significant 
reduction in sales. In order to continue to obtain commercial benefits from the Company’s Kapvay and 
Orapred products, the Company will continue to rely on product manufacturing trade secrets, know-how 
and related non-patent intellectual property. The effect of these patent expirations on the Company and its 
financial results depends, among other things, upon the nature of the market and the position of the 
Company’s products in the market from time to time, the growth of the market, the complexities and 
economics of manufacture of a competitive product and regulatory approval requirements of generic drug 
laws. Accordingly, these patent expirations could have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, financial condition, results of operation and cash flow. 
 
The publication of negative results of studies or clinical trials may adversely impact the Company’s 
Orphan Drugs Division 
 
From time to time, studies or clinical trials on various aspects of pharmaceutical products are conducted by 
academics or others, including government agencies. The results of these studies or trials, when published, 
may have a dramatic effect on the market for the pharmaceutical product that is the subject of the study. 
The publication of negative results of studies or clinical trials related to products in the Company’s Orphan 
Drugs Division or the therapeutic areas in which the Company’s orphan drugs compete could adversely 
affect the Company’s sales, the prescription trends for the Company’s orphan drugs and the reputation of 
the Company’s orphan drugs. In the event of the publication of negative results of studies or clinical trials 
related to the Company’s orphan drugs or the therapeutic areas in which the Company’s orphan drugs 
compete, the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operation and cash flows could be 
materially adversely affected. 
 
The Company relies on third parties to perform distribution, logistics, invoicing, regulatory and sales 
services for its products 
 
The Company relies on third parties to provide distribution, logistics, invoicing, regulatory and sales 
services including warehousing of finished product, accounts receivable management, billing, collection, 
record keeping and processing of invoices with insurance companies. If the third parties cease to be able to 
provide the Company with these services, do not provide these services in a timely or professional manner 
or contracts with such third parties are terminated for any reason, the Company may not be able to 
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successfully manage the product revenues or integrate new products into its business, which may result in 
decreases in sales. The termination of any such contracts or services with such third parties could also have 
a material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and operating results. 
Additionally, any delay or interruption in the process or in payment could result in a delay delivering 
products to its customers, which could have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, 
financial condition and operating results. 
 
Uncertainty can arise regarding the applicability of the Company’s proprietary information 
 
The Company relies on trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary information, as well as requiring 
employees and other investors and suppliers to sign confidentiality agreements. However, these 
confidentiality agreements may be breached, and the Company may not have adequate remedies for such 
breaches. Others may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information without 
infringing upon any proprietary technology. Third parties may otherwise gain access to the Company’s 
proprietary information and adopt it in a competitive manner. Any loss of intellectual property protection is 
likely to adversely affect the Company’s operating results. 
 
Increases in sales may attract generic competition 
 
The Company expects the Legacy Products, which have market exclusivity, to continue to enjoy market 
exclusivity due to a number of factors, including economic barriers to competition. If sales of the Legacy 
Products were to increase substantially, competitors may be more likely to develop generic formulations 
that compete directly with the Company’s products. Increased generic competition would have a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s business and financial results. 
 
The markets in which the Company operates and proposes to operate are highly competitive and subject to 
rapid and significant technological change, which could render the Company’s products obsolete or 
uncompetitive 
 
The Company’s products will face competition from new products that treat some of the same diseases and 
address some of the same conditions as the Company’s products. Many of the Company’s competitors have 
greater financial resources and selling and marketing capabilities. The Company will face further 
competition from pharmaceutical and drug development companies and medical equipment/supply 
companies that focus their efforts on developing and marketing products that are similar in nature to its 
products, but that in some instances offer improvements of the Company’s products. The Company’s 
competitors may succeed in developing technologies and products that are more effective or less expensive 
to use than any that the Company may acquire or licence. These developments could render the Company’s 
products obsolete or uncompetitive, which would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, financial condition and operating results. In addition, academic institutions, government agencies 
and other public and private organizations conducting research may seek patent protection with respect to 
potentially competitive products. They may also establish exclusive collaborative or licensing relationships 
with the Company’s competitors. 
 
The Company faces competition for future acquisitions of products 
 
The Company’s growth strategy is partially predicated on its ability to acquire additional products at 
reasonable prices. The Company currently competes to acquire products with other participants in the 
pharmaceutical industry. In particular, many specialty pharmaceutical companies have adopted business 
strategies that entail acquiring legacy products with a view to increasing sales through focused marketing 
efforts and some of these companies may have greater resources than the Company. In addition, although 
the Company is currently unaware of any other entities that are focused on acquiring products primarily for 
the purpose of generating a stream of stable revenues and cash flow, there can be no assurances that other 
entities will not adopt this strategy in the future. If the Company is unable to acquire additional products at 
reasonable prices, its ability to expand its business and to pay, increase or maintain distributions, as 
applicable, may be adversely affected. 
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The Company may be unsuccessful in evaluating material risks involved in completed and future 
investments 
 
The Company regularly reviews investment opportunities and as part of the review, conducts business, 
legal and financial due diligence with the goal of identifying and evaluating material risks involved in any 
particular transaction. Despite the Company’s efforts, it may be unsuccessful in ascertaining or evaluating 
all such risks. As a result, it might not realize the intended advantages of any given investment and may not 
identify all of the risks relating to the investment. If the Company fails to realize the expected benefits from 
one or more investments, or does not identify all of the risks associated with a particular investment, the 
Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. 
 
The Company may be unable to identify, acquire, close or integrate acquisition targets successfully 
 
Part of the Company’s business strategy includes acquiring and integrating complementary businesses, 
products, pharmaceuticals or other assets, and forming strategic alliances, joint ventures and other business 
combinations, to help drive future growth. The Company may also in-licence new products or 
pharmaceuticals. Acquisitions or similar arrangements may be complex, time consuming and expensive. 
The Company may not consummate some negotiations for acquisitions or other arrangements, which could 
result in significant diversion of management and other employee time, as well as substantial out-of-pocket 
costs. In addition, there are a number of risks and uncertainties relating to closing transactions. If such 
transactions are not completed for any reasons, the Company will be subject to several risks, including the 
following: (i) the market price of the Common Shares may reflect a market assumption that such 
transactions will occur, and a failure to complete such transactions could result in a negative perception by 
the market of the Company generally resulting in a decline in the market price of the Common Shares; and 
(ii) many costs relating to such transactions may be payable by the Company whether or not such 
transactions are completed. 
 
If an acquisition is consummated, the integration of the acquired business, product or other assets into the 
Company may also be complex and time-consuming and, if such businesses, products and assets are not 
successfully integrated, the Company may not achieve the anticipated benefits, cost-savings or growth 
opportunities. Potential difficulties that may be encountered in the integration process include the 
following: 

• integrating personnel, operations and systems, while maintaining a focus on selling and 
promoting existing and newly-acquired products; 

• coordinating geographically dispersed organizations; 
• distracting management and employees from operations; 
• retaining existing customers and attracting new customers; and 
• managing inefficiencies associated with integrating the operations of the Company. 

 
Furthermore, these acquisitions and other arrangements, even if successfully integrated, may fail to further 
the Company’s business strategy as anticipated, expose the Company to increased competition or 
challenges with respect to the Company’s products or geographic markets, and expose the Company to 
additional liabilities associated with an acquired business, product, technology or other asset or 
arrangement. Any one of these challenges or risks could impair the Company’s ability to realize any benefit 
from the Company’s acquisition or arrangement after the Company has expended resources on them. 
 
The Company depends on key managerial personnel for the Company’s continued success 
 
The Company is highly dependent upon qualified managerial personnel. The Company’s anticipated 
growth may require additional expertise and the addition of new qualified personnel. There is intense 
competition for qualified personnel in the pharmaceutical field. Therefore, the Company may not be able to 
attract and retain the qualified personnel necessary for the development of the Company’s business. The 
Company must continue to retain, motivate and recruit executives, including the Company’s Chief 
Executive Officer, Mark Thompson, and other key employees. The loss of the services of existing 
personnel, as well as the failure to recruit additional key managerial personnel in a timely manner, could 
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harm the Company’s business development programs, and the Company’s ability to manage day-to-day 
operations, attract collaboration partners, attract and retain other employees, generate revenues, and could 
have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations 
and could cause the market value of the Common Shares to decline. Except for Mark Thompson, the 
Company does not maintain key person life insurance on any of the Company’s employees. 
 
The Company’s ability to obtain third-party reimbursement for the cost of products and related treatment 
may not be adequate and the Company could lose the ability to obtain third-party reimbursement 
 
The Company’s ability to successfully market the Company’s products and product candidates may depend 
in part on whether appropriate reimbursement levels for the cost of the products and related treatments are 
obtained from government authorities and private health insurers and other organizations, such as HMOs 
and MCOs. The Company is also subject to losing the ability to access such reimbursement by government 
authorities and private health insurers and other organizations due to changing laws, policies and practices 
of such entities. 
 
Third-party payors increasingly challenge the pricing of pharmaceutical products. In addition, the trend 
toward managed health care in the United States, the growth of organizations such as HMOs and MCOs 
and legislative proposals to reform health care and government insurance programs could significantly 
influence the purchase of pharmaceutical products, resulting in price changes and/or a reduction in product 
demand. Such cost containment measures and health care reform could affect the Company’s ability to sell 
the Company’s products and may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of 
operations, cash flows and financial condition. 
 
Failure to be included in formularies developed by managed care and other organizations 
 
Managed care organizations and other third-party payors try to negotiate the pricing of medical services 
and products to control their costs. Managed care organizations and pharmacy benefit managers typically 
develop formularies to reduce their cost for medications. Formularies can be based on the prices and 
therapeutic benefits of the available products. Due to their lower costs, generic products are often favoured. 
The breadth of the products covered by formularies varies considerably from one managed care 
organization to another, and many formularies include alternative and competitive products for treatment of 
particular medical conditions. Failure to be included in such formularies or to achieve favourable formulary 
status may negatively impact the utilization of the Company’s products. If the Company’s products are not 
included within an adequate number of formularies or adequate reimbursement levels are not provided, or 
if those policies increasingly favour generic products, the Company’s market share and gross margins could 
be adversely impacted, as could the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows. 
 
The Company’s business is subject to limitations imposed by government regulations 
 
In domestic and foreign markets, the formulation, manufacturing, packaging, labelling, handling, 
distribution, importation, exportation, licensing, sale and storage of the Company’s products are affected by 
extensive laws, governmental regulations, administrative determinations, court decisions and similar 
constraints which are beyond the Company’s control. Such laws, regulations, determinations, decisions and 
other constraints may exist at all levels of government. There can be no assurance that the Company is or 
will be in compliance with all of these laws, regulations, determinations, decisions and other constraints. 
Failure to comply with these laws, regulations, determinations, decisions and other constraints or new laws, 
regulations, determinations, decisions or constraints could lead to the imposition of significant penalties or 
claims and could negatively impact the Company’s business. In addition, the adoption of new laws, 
regulations, determinations, decisions or other constraints or changes in the interpretations of such 
requirements may result in significant compliance costs or lead the Company to discontinue product sales 
and may have an adverse effect on the marketing of the Company’s products, resulting in significant loss of 
sales and a material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, cash flows and 
financial condition.  
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In the United States, the FDA perceives any written or verbal statement used to promote or sell a product 
that associates an unapproved nutrient with a disease (whether written by the Company, the content of a 
testimonial endorsement or contained within a scientific publication) to be evidence of intent to sell an 
unapproved new drug. If any such evidence is found with respect to the Company’s products, the FDA may 
take adverse action against the Company, ranging from a warning letter necessitating cessation of use of the 
statement to injunctions against product sale, seizures of products promoted with the statements, and civil 
and criminal prosecution of the Company’s executives. Such actions could have a detrimental effect on 
sales and a material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, cash flows and 
financial condition.  
 
Legislative or regulatory reform of the health care system may affect the Company’s ability to sell its 
products profitably and could adversely affect the Company’s business 
 
In the United States and certain foreign jurisdictions, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory 
proposals to change the healthcare system in ways that could impact the Company’s ability to sell its 
products profitably. The Health Care Reform Act may affect the operational results of companies in the 
pharmaceutical industry, including the Company, by imposing on them additional costs. For example, 
effective January 1, 2010, the Health Care Reform Act increased the minimum Medicaid drug rebates for 
pharmaceutical companies, expanded the 340B drug discount program, and made changes to affect the 
Medicare Part D coverage gap, or “donut hole”. The law also revised the definition of “average 
manufacturer price” for reporting purposes, which has the potential to affect the amount of the Company’s 
Medicaid drug rebates to states. Beginning in 2011, the law imposed a significant annual fee on companies 
that manufacture or import branded prescription drug products. 
 
The Health Care Reform Act also added substantial new provisions affecting compliance therewith, some 
of which may require the Company to modify its business practices with health care practitioners. 
Pharmaceutical manufacturers are required in 2013 to comply with the federal Physician Payments 
Sunshine Act, which was passed as part of the Health Care Reform Act and requires pharmaceutical 
companies to monitor and report payments, gifts, the provision of samples and other remuneration made to 
physicians and other health care professionals and health care organizations. 
 
The Company is unable to predict the future course of federal or state health care legislation. A variety of 
federal and state agencies are in the process of implementing the Health Care Reform Act, including 
through the issuance of rules, regulations or guidance that materially affect the Company’s business. The 
risk of the Company being found in violation of these rules and regulations is increased by the fact that 
many of them have not been fully interpreted by applicable regulatory authorities or the courts, and their 
provisions are open to a variety of interpretations. The Health Care Reform Act and further changes to 
health care laws or regulatory framework that reduce the Company’s revenues or increase the Company’s 
costs could also have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows, and could cause the market price of the Common Shares to decline. 
 
Other legislation or regulatory proposals may adversely affect the Company’s revenues and profitability 
 
Existing and proposed changes in the laws and regulations affecting public companies, including the 
provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 in the United States and Bill 198 in Ontario and related rules, 
may cause the Company to incur increased costs as the Company evaluates the implications of new rules 
and responds to new requirements. Failure to comply with the new rules and regulations could result in 
enforcement actions or the assessment of other penalties. The new laws and regulations could make it more 
difficult to obtain certain types of insurance, including director’s and officer’s liability insurance, and the 
Company may be forced to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to 
obtain the same or similar coverage. The impact of these events could also make it more difficult for the 
Company to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on the Company’s board of directors, or as 
executive officers. The Company may be required to hire additional personnel and utilize additional outside 
legal, accounting and advisory services, all of which could cause the Company’s general and administrative 
costs to increase beyond what the Company currently has planned. The Company is presently evaluating 
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and monitoring developments with respect to these rules, and the Company cannot predict or estimate the 
amount of the additional costs the Company may incur or the timing of such costs. 
 
Rising insurance costs could negatively impact the Company’s profitability 
 
The cost of insurance, including director and officer, worker’s compensation, property, product liability and 
general liability insurance, has risen significantly in recent years and is expected to continue to increase. In 
response, the Company may increase deductibles and/or decrease certain coverage to mitigate these costs. 
These increases, and the Company’s increased risk due to increased deductibles and reduced coverage, 
could have a negative impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
 
Policies regarding returns, allowances and chargebacks may reduce revenues in future fiscal periods 
 
The Company establishes estimates of the impact that policies regarding returns, allowances and 
chargebacks may have in subsequent periods. The Company cannot ensure that the reserves are adequate or 
that actual product returns, allowances and chargebacks will not exceed the estimates, which could have a 
material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
 
The Company may be subject to product liability claims, which can be expensive, difficult to defend and 
may result in large judgments or settlements 
 
The administration of drugs to humans, whether in clinical trials or after marketing clearance is obtained, 
can result in product liability claims. Product liability claims can be expensive, difficult to defend and may 
result in large judgments or settlements against the Company. In addition, third-party collaborators and 
licensees may not protect the Company from product liability claims. 
 
The Company currently maintains product liability insurance in connection with the marketing of the 
Legacy Products and certain products of Pinnacle. The Company may not be able to obtain or maintain 
adequate protection against potential liabilities arising from product sales. If the Company is unable to 
obtain sufficient levels of insurance at acceptable cost or otherwise protect against potential product 
liability claims, the Company will be exposed to product liability claims. A successful product liability 
claim in excess of the Company’s insurance coverage could harm the Company’s financial condition, 
results of operations and prevent or interfere with the Company’s product commercialization efforts. In 
addition, any successful claim may prevent the Company from obtaining adequate product liability 
insurance in the future on commercially desirable terms. Even if a claim is not successful, defending such a 
claim may be time-consuming and expensive. Product liability claims could also result in negative 
perception of the Company’s products which could have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, results of operations, sales, financial results and cash flow. 
 
Unexpected product safety or efficacy concerns may arise 
 
Unexpected safety or efficacy concerns can arise with respect to marketed products, whether or not 
scientifically justified, leading to product recalls, withdrawals or declining sales, as well as product 
liability, consumer fraud and/or other claims. This could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Risks related to patent infringement actions 
 
The Company could become involved in infringement actions which are uncertain, costly and time-
consuming and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and 
results of operations and could cause the market value of the Common Shares to decline. The 
pharmaceutical industry historically has generated substantial litigation concerning the manufacture, use 
and sale of products and management of the Company expects this litigation activity to continue. As a 
result, patents related to the Company’s products could be challenged, and the Company’s patents may not 
be upheld. In order to protect or enforce patent rights, the Company may initiate litigation against third 
parties. If the Company is not successful in defending an attack on its patents and maintaining exclusive 
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rights to market one or more of the Company’s products still under patent protection, the Company could 
lose a significant portion of sales in a very short period. The Company could also become subject to 
infringement claims by third parties and may have to defend against charges that the Company’s products 
infringed patents or the proprietary rights of third parties. If the Company infringes the intellectual property 
rights of others, the Company could lose its right to develop, manufacture or sell products, including its 
generic products, or could be required to pay monetary damages or royalties to license proprietary rights 
from third parties. The outcomes of infringement actions are uncertain and infringement actions are costly 
and divert technical and management personnel from their normal responsibilities. 
 
Compliance with regulations related to marketing, promotional and pricing practices 
 
The marketing, promotional and pricing practices of pharmaceutical companies, as well as the manner in 
which companies, in-house or third-party sales forces interact with purchasers, prescribers and patents, are 
subject to extensive regulation, enforcement of which may result in the imposition of civil and/or criminal 
penalties, injunctions, and/or limitations on marketing practices for the Company’s products. Many 
companies have been the subject of claims related to these practices asserted by federal authorities. These 
claims have resulted in fines and other consequences. 
 
Companies may not promote drugs for “off-label” uses – that is, uses that are not described in the product’s 
labeling and that differ from those approved by the FDA, Health Canada or other applicable regulatory 
agencies. A company that is found to have improperly promoted off-label uses may be subject to significant 
liability, including civil and administrative remedies as well as criminal sanctions. In addition, 
management’s attention could be diverted from business operations and the Company’s reputation could be 
damaged. 
 
Risks related to “fraud and abuse” laws, anti-bribery laws, environmental laws and privacy and security 
regulations 
 
Pharmaceutical companies in the United States have faced lawsuits and investigations pertaining to 
violations of health care “fraud and abuse” laws, such as the federal False Claims Act, Anti-Kickback 
Statutes and other state and federal laws and regulations. The Company is also subject to increasingly strict 
data privacy and security laws in the United States and in other countries, the violation of which could 
result in fines and other sanctions. The United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General recommends, and increasingly states require, pharmaceutical companies to have 
comprehensive compliance programs and to disclose certain payments made to healthcare providers or 
funds spent on marketing and promotion of drug products. The United States federal government has 
published regulations that identify “safe harbour” or exemptions for certain payment arrangements that do 
not violate the anti-kickback statutes. The Company will seek to continue its compliance with the safe 
harbour. While the Company has developed corporate compliance programs based on what the Company 
believes to be current best practices, the Company cannot assure you that its employees or agents are or 
will be in compliance with all applicable federal, state or foreign regulations and laws. If the Company or 
any of its employees or agents are in violation of any of these requirements or any such actions are 
instituted against the Company, and the Company is not successful in defending itself or asserting its rights, 
those actions could have a significant impact on the Company’s business, including the imposition of 
significant fines, exclusion from federal healthcare programs or other sanctions. 
 
Anti-Kickback Statutes and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws generally prohibit companies and their 
intermediaries from making improper payments to officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining 
business. The Company’s policies mandate compliance with these anti-bribery laws. The Company may 
operate in many parts of the world that have experienced governmental corruption to some degree and in 
certain circumstances, strict compliance with anti-bribery laws may conflict with local customs and 
practices or may require the Company to interact with doctors and hospitals, some of which may be state 
controlled, in a manner that is different than in the United States and Canada. The Company cannot assure 
you that its internal control policies and procedures will protect the Company from reckless or criminal acts 
committed by its employees or agents. Violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could 
disrupt the Company’s business and result in criminal or civil penalties or remedial measures, any of which 
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could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations and could cause the market value of the Common Shares to decline. 
 
The Company is also subject to various privacy and security regulations, including but not limited to 
HIPAA. HIPAA mandates, among other things, the adoption of uniform standards for the electronic 
exchange of information in common health care transactions (e.g. health care claims information and plan 
eligibility, referral certification and authorization, claims status, plan enrolment, coordination of benefits 
and related information), as well as standards relating to the privacy and security of individually 
identifiable health information, which require the adoption of administrative, physical and technical 
safeguards to protect such information. In addition, many states have enacted comparable laws addressing 
the privacy and security of health information, some of which are more stringent than HIPAA. Failure to 
comply with these laws can result in the imposition of significant civil and criminal penalties. The costs of 
compliance with these laws and the potential liability associated with the failure to comply with these laws 
could adversely affect the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 
 
Industry Risk 
 
The Company currently operates only in the North American healthcare industry. Accordingly, the 
Company is subject to risks associated with operating in a single industry in a concentrated geographic 
location. Any event effecting this industry could have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 
 
The Company may not be able to secure additional financing 
 
The Company may need to raise additional funds through public or private debt or equity financings in 
order to: (a) fund ongoing operations; (b) take advantage of opportunities, including more rapid expansion 
of the Company’s business or the acquisition of complementary businesses; or (c) respond to competitive 
pressures. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to raise the additional funding that it 
needs to carry out its growth objectives. The Company cannot predict the size of future issuances of 
securities or the effect, if any, that future issuances and sales of securities will have on the market price of 
the Common Shares. Sales or issuances of substantial numbers of Common Shares, or the perception that 
such sales could occur, may adversely affect prevailing market prices of the Common Shares.  
 
The development of the Company’s business depends upon prevailing capital market conditions, business 
performance and its ability to obtain financing through joint ventures, debt financing, equity financing or 
other means. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining required financing as 
and when needed or at all. If additional financing is raised by the issuance of shares from treasury, 
shareholders may suffer additional dilution. Capital raised through debt financing would require periodic 
interest payments and may impose restrictive covenants on the conduct of the Company’s business. 
Furthermore, additional financings may not be available on terms favourable to the Company, and may not 
be available at all. A failure to obtain additional funding could prevent the Company from making 
acquisitions or other expenditures that may be required to implement the Company’s growth strategy and 
grow or maintain the Company’s operations. 
 
Debt Financing 
 
The Company’s credit facilities and the agreements governing the Company’s existing and future 
indebtedness contain or will contain financial and non-financial covenants, such as requirements that the 
Company comply with one or more financial ratios and change of control provisions. Complying with such 
covenants may at times necessitate that the Company must forego other favourable business opportunities, 
such as acquisitions. Moreover, the Company’s failure to comply with any of these covenants would likely 
constitute a default under such facilities and agreements and could give rise to an acceleration of some, if 
not all, of the Company’s then outstanding indebtedness, which would have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s business. The Company’s indebtedness may grow as the Company’s business grows and/or the 
Company makes new acquisitions. If the Company’s income from operations underperforms, the Company 
may have to utilize cash flow or capital resources to fund its debt service payments. If the Company’s cash 
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flow and capital resources are insufficient to service amounts owed under the Company’s current or any 
future indebtedness, as applicable, the Company may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, 
dispose of assets, issue equity or incur additional debt to obtain necessary funds, or restructure its debt, any 
or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and 
results of operations. In addition, the Company cannot guarantee that it would be able to take any of these 
actions on terms acceptable to it, or at all, that these actions would enable the Company to continue to 
satisfy its capital requirements or that these actions would be permitted under the terms of the Company’s 
various debt agreements. 
 
The Company’s effective tax rates may increase 
 
The Company has operations in various countries that have differing tax laws and rates. The Company’s 
tax reporting is supported by current domestic tax laws in the countries in which the Company operates and 
the application of tax treaties between the various countries in which the Company operates. The 
Company’s income tax reporting is and will continue to be subject to audit by domestic and foreign 
authorities. The Company’s effective tax rate may change from year to year based on changes in the mix of 
activities and income earned among the different jurisdictions in which the Company operates; changes in 
tax laws in these jurisdictions; changes in the tax treaties between various countries in which the Company 
operates; changes in the Company’s eligibility for benefits under those tax treaties; and changes in the 
estimated values of deferred tax assets and liabilities. Such changes could result in a substantial increase in 
the effective tax rate on all or a portion of the Company’s income. 
 
The Company’s provision for income taxes is based on certain estimates and assumptions made by 
management. The Company’s consolidated income tax rate is affected by the amount of net income earned 
in its various operating jurisdictions, the availability of benefits under tax treaties, and the rates of taxes 
payable in respect of that income. The Company enters into many transactions and arrangements in the 
ordinary course of business in respect of which the tax treatment is not entirely certain. The Company 
therefore makes estimates and judgments based on the Company’s knowledge and understanding of 
applicable tax laws and tax treaties, and the application of those tax laws and tax treaties to the Company’s 
business, in determining its consolidated tax provision. For example, certain countries could seek to tax a 
greater share of income than may be provided for by the Company. The final outcome of any audits by 
taxation authorities may differ from the estimates and assumptions that the Company may use in 
determining its consolidated tax provisions and accruals. This could result in a material adverse effect on 
the Company’s consolidated income tax provision, financial condition and the net income for the period in 
which such determinations are made.  
 
Foreign currency risk 
 
Currency exchange rate fluctuations can affect the Company’s results of operations to the extent that the 
Company’s equity financing is denominated in Canadian dollars and the Company’s functional currency is 
the United States dollar. Consequently, the Company may experience currency gains and losses on the 
conversion of Canadian equity financing proceeds into United States dollars required for business 
operations. One half of any foreign exchange gains or losses will be included in the Company’s Canadian 
taxable income. Any foreign exchange gain will result in a corresponding reduction in the Company’s 
available Canadian Non-Capital losses, Scientific Research and Experimental Development Pool, and/or 
Investment Tax Credit carry forward balances. 
 
Also, the price of the Common Shares may be independently impacted by the exchange rate alone as the 
market price of the Company’s securities will be denominated in Canadian dollars while the financial 
results of the Company’s operations will be denominated in United States dollars. Consequently, the 
market price of the Company’s securities may be negatively affected by adverse changes in the 
Canadian/US dollar exchange rate. 
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Seasonality of Operating Results 
 
Demand for certain of the Company’s products may be impacted by seasonality. This seasonality may 
cause the Company’s operating results to fluctuate. 
 
Failure to obtain or maintain orphan drug exclusivity 
 
If the Company fail’s to obtain or maintain orphan drug exclusivity for some or all of the Company’s 
products, the Company’s competitors may sell products to treat the same conditions and the Company’s 
revenues will be reduced. As part of its business strategy, the Company may acquire some drugs that may 
be eligible for FDA and EU orphan drug designation. Under the OD Act, the FDA may designate a product 
as an orphan drug if it is intended to treat a rare disease or condition, defined as a patient population of 
fewer than 200,000 in the United States. The company that first obtains FDA approval for a designated 
orphan drug for a given rare disease receives marketing exclusivity for use of that drug for the stated 
condition for a period of seven years. Orphan drug exclusive marketing rights may be lost if the FDA later 
determines that the request for designation was materially defective or if the manufacturer is unable to 
assure sufficient quantity of the drug. Similar regulations are available in the EU with a ten-year period of 
market exclusivity. Because the extent and scope of patent protection for some of the Company’s drug 
products is limited, orphan drug designation is especially important for products that are eligible for orphan 
drug designation. For eligible drugs, the Company plans to rely on the exclusivity period under the OD Act 
to maintain a competitive position. If the Company does not obtain orphan drug exclusivity for drug 
products that do not have broad patent protection, the Company’s competitors may then sell the same drug 
to treat the same condition and the Company’s revenues will be reduced. 
 
Holding Company 
 
As a holding company with no material assets other than the stock of the Company’s operating subsidiaries, 
nearly all of the Company’s funds generated from operations are generated by the Company’s operating 
subsidiaries. Accordingly, if the Company’s operating subsidiaries are unable, due to regulatory restrictions 
or otherwise, to pay the Company dividends and make other payments to the Company when needed, the 
Company may be unable to satisfy the Company’s obligations when they arise. 
 
Foreign Subsidiaries 
 
The Company currently conducts certain of its operations through foreign subsidiaries and certain of its 
assets are held in such entities. The ability of such subsidiaries to make payments to the Company may be 
constrained by certain factors including the level of taxation, particularly corporate profits and withholding 
taxes, in the countries in which they operate. Any limitation on the transfer of cash or other assets between 
the parent Company and such entities, or among such entities, could restrict the Company’s ability to fund 
its operations efficiently. Any such limitations, or the perception that such limitations may exist now or in 
the future, may adversely affect the Company’s business and results of operations and cash flows.  
 
Some of the Company’s Assets and Subsidiaries are Incorporated Outside Of Canada 
 
Certain of the Company’s assets and subsidiaries are located outside of Canada. In addition, some of the 
Company’s directors and officers are nationals and/or residents of countries other than Canada, and all or a 
substantial portion of such persons’ assets may be located outside of Canada. The board of directors of the 
Company has effective control over the subsidiaries in two principal ways; namely, at least one director or 
officer of the Company is a director of each of the subsidiaries, and the Company is a shareholder of the 
subsidiaries having legal rights (e.g. the fiduciary obligations of officers and directors owed to the 
subsidiary, derivative actions and oppression remedies) that the Company is willing to enforce. With the 
Company being the sole or majority shareholder of the subsidiaries, as applicable, the Company can resolve 
in a limited period of time to remove directors or officers without the requirement of a shareholder meeting. 
As a result, it may be difficult for investors to enforce, within Canada, any judgments obtained against the 
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Company’s officers or directors, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the 
securities laws of Canada or any province thereof. Consequently, investors may be effectively prevented 
from pursuing remedies against the Company under Canadian securities laws. 
 
Future Accounting Standards 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued by the IASB in October 2010 and will replace IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a 
financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The 
approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its 
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Most of the 
requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried forward 
unchanged to IFRS 9. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the 
multiple impairment methods in IAS 39. Requirements relating to Hedge Accounting, representing a new 
hedge accounting model, have been added to IFRS 9 in November 2013.  The new model represents a 
substantial overhaul of hedge accounting which will allow entities to better reflect their risk management 
activities in the financial statements.  The most significant improvements apply to those that hedge non-
financial risk, and so these improvements are expected to be of particular interest to non-financial 
institutions.  IFRS 9 is available for application, however, previous mandatory effective date of January 1, 
2015 has been removed as the IASB decided that this date would not allow sufficient time for entities to 
apply the new standard because the impairment phase of the IFRS 9 has not yet been completed.  The IASB 
will decide upon a new date when the entire IFRS 9 project is closer to completion.  The company is 
currently assessing the impact of, and when to adopt, IFRS 9.  
 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
In October 2012, IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10 to require investment entities to measure 
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.  In addition, IFRS 12 has been amended to include 
disclosure requirements for investment entities.  IAS 27 has been amended to require investment entities to 
measure investments in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss when separate financial statements 
are presented.  The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  
Earlier application is permitted.  The adoption of the amendments to this standard is not expected to have a 
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.  
 
Financial Instruments: Presentation 
 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation was amended by the IASB in December 2011.  Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities amendment addresses inconsistencies identified in applying some 
of the offsetting criteria.  The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 
2014.  Earlier application is permitted.  The company is currently assessing the impact of, and when to 
adopt, IFRS 9. 
 
Impairment of Assets 
 
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets was amended by the IASB in June 2013.  Recoverable Amount Disclosures 
for Non-Financial Assets amendment modifies certain disclosure requirements about the recoverable 
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.  The amendment is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  Earlier application is permitted when 
the entity has already applied IFRS 13.  The adoption of the amendments to this standard is not expected to 
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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Non-Financial IFRS Measures 
 
This MD&A makes reference to certain non-IFRS measures.  These non-IFRS measures are not recognized 
measures under IFRS and do not have a standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS, and are therefore 
unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.  When used, these measures 
are defined in such terms as to allow the reconciliation to the closest IFRS measure.  These measures are 
provided as additional information to complement those IFRS measures by providing further understanding 
of the Company’s results of operations from management’s perspective.  Accordingly, they should not be 
considered in isolation nor as a substitute for analyses of the Company’s financial information reported 
under IFRS.  Management uses non-IFRS measures such as EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to provide 
investors with a supplemental measure of the Company’s operating performance and thus highlight trends 
in the Company’s core business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying solely on IFRS financial 
measures.  Management also believes that securities analysts, investors and other interested parties 
frequently use non-IFRS measures in the evaluation of issuers.  Management also uses non-IFRS measures 
in order to facilitate operating performance comparisons from period to period, prepare annual operating 
budgets, and to assess its ability to meet future debt service, capital expenditure, and working capital 
requirements.  
 
The definition and reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA used and presented by the Company 
to the most directly comparable IFRS measures follows below. 
 
EBITDA 
 
EBITDA is defined as net income adjusted for net interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and 
amortization.  Management uses EBITDA to assess the Company’s operating performance.  A 
reconciliation of net income to EBITDA is provided below.  
 
Adjusted EBITDA 
 
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA adjusted for one-time charges associated with acquisitions, one-
time charges associated with the Company’s listing on the TSX, non-recurring gains, non-cash items such 
as unrealized gains / losses on derivative instruments, and realized / unrealized gains / losses related to 
foreign exchange revaluation.  Management uses Adjusted EBITDA as the key metric in assessing business 
performance when comparing actual results to budgets and forecasts.  Management believes adjusted 
EBITDA is an important measure of operating performance and cash flow, and provides useful information 
to investors because it highlights trends in the underlying business that may not otherwise be apparent 
when relying solely on IFRS measures.   
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The table below sets forth the reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and to Adjusted EBITDA for the 
year ended December 31, 2013: 
 

 
 
 
Outstanding Share Data 
 
As at December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2014 the Company had 17,985,889 and 23,861,246 common 
shares issued and outstanding, respectively, and there were 1,621,798 and 2,261,441 options outstanding, 
respectively, that entitle the holder to purchase one common share per share option of the Company. 
 
Controls and Procedures 
 
Management’s Report on Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting 
 
Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that all material 
information is gathered and reported to senior management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the 
Chief Financial Officer, on a timely basis so that appropriate decisions can be made regarding public 
disclosure.   The preparation of this information is supported by a set of disclosure controls and procedures 
implemented by management.    
 
Internal controls over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes.  
 
 
 

2013

Net Income 2,431$                  

Interest expense 6,382                    
Income Taxes 425                       
Depreciation expense 18                        
Amortization of intangible assets 120                       
EBITDA 9,376$                  

Change in fair value of convertible warrants 4,648                    
Share based compensation 1,070                    
Exchange listing expenses 2,404                    
Business acquisition related costs 3,692                    
Foreign exchange (gain) loss 129                       
Other (income) expense (150)                     
Adjusted EBITDA 21,169$                 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Shareholders of Concordia Healthcare Corp. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Concordia Healthcare Corp. and its 
subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive loss changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Concordia Healthcare Corp. and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.  

Licensed Public Accountants 
Chartered Accountants 
March 30, 2014 
Toronto, Ontario 
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[4]

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 20)
Subsequent events (Note 24)

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on March 30, 2014.

"Jordan Kupinsky" "Mark Thompson"
Director (Signed) Director (Signed)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

2013
Assets
Current

Cash  42,899$

Accounts receivable (Note 6) 23,012

Inventory (Note 7) 4,030

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,407

Deferred income taxes (Note 12) 24

72,372

Fixed assets (Note 8) 444

Intangible assets (Note 9) 61,700

Goodwill (Note 10) 36,249

Total Assets 170,765$

Liabilities
Current

Accounts payable 21,669$

Accrued liabilities 7,734

Provisions (Note 11) 24,208

Royalties payable 3,093

Taxes payable 987

Senior and subordinate debt (Note 13) 14,966

Current portion of notes payable (Note 14) 662

Current portion of purchase consideration payable (Note 15) 2,786

76,105

Notes payable (Note 14) 5,104

Purchase consideration payable (Note 15) 21,599

Deferred taxes (Note 12) 6,415

Other liabilities 20

Total Liabilities 109,243

Shareholders' Equity
Share capital (Note 16) 57,521

Reserve for share based compensation (Note 18) 1,555

Accumulated other comprehensive income 15

Retained earnings 2,431

Total Shareholders' Equity 61,522

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 170,765$
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[5]

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2013

Revenue 40,447$                      
Cost of sales 8,338
Gross profit 32,109

Operating expenses
General and administrative 8,476
Selling 2,464
Share-based compensation 1,070
Exchange listing expenses 2,404
Business acquisition related costs 3,692
Depreciation expense 18

Total operating expenses 18,124

Operating income 13,985

Other income and expense
Interest and accretion expense 6,382
Change in fair value of derivative warrants 4,648
Amortization of intangible assets 120
Foreign exchange (gain) loss 129
Other (income) expense (150)

Profit Before Tax 2,856

Income Taxes (Note 12) 425

Net Income 2,431

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 15

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,446$                      

Earnings Per Share (Note 17)
Basic earnings per share 0.38$                          
Fully Diluted earnings per share 0.38$                          
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[7]

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income after tax 2,431$                        
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 138
Accretion interest 4,322
Interest expense 2,060
Share based compensation expense 1,070
Share based transaction and listing expenses 4,593
Change in fair value of derivative warrants 4,648
Income taxes 265

19,527

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding effect of acquisitions
Accounts receivable (19,454)
Inventory 313
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (816)
Accounts payable 20,395
Accrued liabilities 2,597
Provisions 24,208
Royalties payable 3,093

Net cash provided by operating activities 49,863

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (59,259)
Purchase of fixed assets (107)

Net cash used in investing activities (59,366)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 39,064
Proceeds from credit facility 3,000
Proceeds from senior and subordinated debt 21,150
Debt issuance costs (1,100)
Interest paid (1,304)
Repayment of credit facility (3,000)
Repayment of senior debt (5,408)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 52,402

Net change in cash 42,899
Cash at beginning of year -

Cash at end of year 42,899$                    
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[8]

of Business and General Information

1. Description of Business and General Information

Concordia Healthcare Corp. (the “Company” or “Concordia”) is an integrated healthcare company 
that targets three areas: (a) legacy pharmaceutical products; (b) specialized healthcare distribution 
that services the growing diabetic market; and (c) the acquisition and/or development of orphan 
drugs.

These three business units are run as separate divisions but are inter-related. The cash-flow from 
legacy pharmaceutical products is used to fund operations and is also intended to fund the expansion 
of indications for potential orphan drugs. The specialized healthcare distribution division provides 
additional growth and cash-flow generation. Additionally, through its registered pharmacy 
operation, this business is intended to provide a specialty distribution capability for orphan drugs 
once acquired and/or developed. The three business units were acquired during the year and are 
expected to provide the Company with an increased market share of the related products, as well as 
savings in costs through economies of scale.

All three of these divisions are operated through a corporate organization that provides executive 
leadership, industry experience and financial and capital markets experience.

On December 20, 2013 the Company entered into an amalgamation agreement (the “Amalgamation 
Agreement”) and completed its qualifying transaction (the “Qualifying Transaction”).  The 
Qualifying Transaction proceeded by way of a “three-cornered” amalgamation among Mercari 
Acquisition Corp. (“Mercari”), a capital pool company listed on the NEX board of the Toronto 
Stock Exchange Venture Exchange, Mercari Subco Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mercari, and 
Concordia Healthcare Inc., (“CHI”), a private Ontario corporation incorporated on December 5, 
2012. On December 18, 2013, Mercari changed its name to “Concordia Healthcare Corp.” and 
completed a consolidation of its share capital on a basis of one post-consolidation common share for 
every 48.08 common shares existing immediately before the consolidation. The Qualifying 
Transaction resulted in a reverse takeover of Mercari by the shareholders of CHI (the “Reverse 
Takeover”).

After the Qualifying Transaction, the shareholders of CHI held 98.5% of the shares of the 
amalgamated corporation, and for accounting purposes CHI has been deemed the acquirer.  The 
Qualifying Transaction constitutes a reverse takeover but does not meet the definition of a business 
combination under International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 3, Business Combinations;
accordingly the Company has accounted for the transaction in accordance with IFRS 2, Share-based 
Payment.  The assets and liabilities of Mercari have been included in the Company’s consolidated 
balance sheet at fair value, which approximate their pre-combination carrying values. 

Mercari’s shares were delisted from the NEX board of the TSX Venture Exchange.  Concordia 
Healthcare Corp.’s shares were listed for trading on the TSX under the symbol “CXR” on December 
24, 2013.

The registered and head office of the Company is located at 277 Lakeshore Rd. East, Suite 302, 
Oakville, Ontario, L6J 1H9.
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[9]

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and 
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations.  The 
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the 
accounting policies below.  The accounting policies have been consistently applied throughout 
the period unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

CHI was incorporated on December 5, 2012, however, the entity was not capitalized and did 
not commence operations until May of 2013.  As a result there are no transactions to report for 
the period ended December 31, 2012 and the consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared for the year ended December 31, 2013, with no comparative information presented. 

(b) Future Accounting Changes

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for 
annual periods beginning after January 1, 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these 
consolidated financial statements.  

Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”) in October 2010 and will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is 
measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach 
in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its 
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Most of the 
requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried 
forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to 
be used, replacing the multiple impairment methods in IAS 39. Requirements relating to Hedge 
Accounting, representing a new hedge accounting model, have been added to IFRS 9 in 
November 2013.  The new model represents a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting which 
will allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities in the financial statements.  
The most significant improvements apply to those that hedge non-financial risk, and so these 
improvements are expected to be of particular interest to non-financial institutions.  IFRS 9 is 
available for application, however, previous mandatory effective date of January 1, 2015 has 
been removed as the IASB decided that this date would not allow sufficient time for entities to 
apply the new standard because the impairment phase of the IFRS 9 has not yet been 
completed.  The IASB will decide upon a new date when the entire IFRS 9 project is closer to 
completion.  The Company is currently assessing the impact of, and when to adopt, IFRS 9. 
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[10]

Consolidated Financial Statements

In October 2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
to require investment entities to measure subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.  In 
addition, IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities has been amended to include 
disclosure requirements for investment entities.  IAS 27 Separate financial statements has been 
amended to require investment entities to measure investments in subsidiaries at fair value 
through profit or loss when separate financial statements are presented.  The amendments are 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  Earlier application is 
permitted.  The adoption of the amendments to this standard is not expected to have a material 
impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

Financial Instruments: Presentation

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation was amended by the IASB in December 2011.  
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities amendment addresses inconsistencies 
identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria.  The amendment is effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  Earlier application is permitted.  The Company 
is currently assessing the impact of adoption of this standard.

Impairment of Assets

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets was amended by the IASB in June 2013.  Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets amendment modifies certain disclosure requirements 
about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs 
to sell.  The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  
Earlier application is permitted when the entity has already applied IFRS 13, Fair Value 
Measurement.  The adoption of the amendments to this standard is not expected to have a 
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(c) Consolidation

The wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are consolidated to produce the financial 
results for the consolidated corporation.  All intercompany transactions, balances, income and 
expenses on transactions between the subsidiaries are fully eliminated.  Profits and losses 
resulting from intercompany transactions that were recognized are also fully eliminated. 

These consolidated financial statements include the following wholly owned subsidiaries of the 
Company: Concordia Healthcare, Inc. (“CHI”); Concordia Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“CPI”); 
Concordia Healthcare (USA) Inc. (“CHUSA”), Complete Medical Homecare, Inc. (“CMH”); 
Concordia Labs Inc. (“CLI”); Pinnacle Biologics, Inc (“Pinnacle”), and Pinnacle’s wholly 
owned material subsidiary Pinnacle Biologics B.V. 

(d) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the chief operating decision makers.  

The chief operating decision makers, who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, have been identified as the Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)

[11]

(e) Foreign Currency Translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured 
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the 
“functional currency”).  The Company has determined that the functional currency of all of its 
major entities is the United States Dollar.  The consolidated financial statements are presented 
in thousands of United States dollars, which in the opinion of management is the most 
appropriate functional currency as the United States dollar is used to a significant extent in, or 
has a significant impact on, the operations of the Company and reflects the economic substance 
of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Company.     

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income.

(f) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  
Depreciation is recorded as follows:

Computers and IT equipment: Straight-line over 4 years
Office furniture and fixtures: Straight-line over 5 years
Equipment: Straight-line over 3 years
Leasehold improvements: Over the lease term

Repair and maintenance expenditures that extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized and 
minor repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred to the statement of income and 
comprehensive income.  The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted 
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.  An asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its 
estimated recoverable amount.  Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the 
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within the statement of income and 
comprehensive income.

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the lease arrangement transfers substantially all of 
the risks and rewards related to the ownership of the leased asset. The related asset is then 
recognized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the 
present value of the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any. A corresponding amount 
is recognized as a finance lease liability. Depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held 
under finance lease agreements correspond to those applied to comparable assets which are 
legally owned by the Company. The corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease 
payments net of imputed interest.  All other leases are treated as operating leases. Payments on 
operating lease agreements are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.
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Concordia Healthcare Corp. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
(Stated in thousand of U.S. Dollars)
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(h) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess amount of consideration given over the fair value of the 
underlying assets in a business combination, and is measured at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.  Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment on an annual basis 
or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill may be impaired. For the purposes of 
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company’s cash generating units 
(“CGU”) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisitions.

(i) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.  Intangible assets with finite 
lives include customer lists which are amortized based on an attrition rate of 7% per month and 
intellectual property which is amortized over a period of 15 years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives include brands, trademarks, processes and In-
licensed patents and are accounted for at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with indefinite lives are subject to annual impairment tests.

(j) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company reviews assets such as property and equipment and intangible assets with finite 
useful lives for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they may be impaired. 

For the purpose of measuring recoverable amounts, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs).  Recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s fair value less the cost to sell and value in use, (being the present value of the 
expected future cash flows of the relevant asset or CGU), as determined by management. 

Any impairment losses are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of income 
and comprehensive income.  Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment 
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when present (legal or constructive) obligations as a result of a past 
event will lead to a probable outflow of economic resources and amounts can be estimated 
reliably. Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, 
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. The Company 
performs evaluations to identify onerous contracts and, where applicable, records provisions 
for such contracts. 

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present 
obligations is considered remote, no liability has been recognized.
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(l) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for the differences between the tax basis and carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities, for operating losses and for tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which temporary differences can be utilized.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates and laws.

In a business combination, temporary differences arise as a result of differences in the fair 
values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired and their respective tax bases. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax effects of these differences. Deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences arising from 
goodwill or from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities acquired in a transaction other 
than a business combination which do not affect either accounting or taxable income or loss. 

(m) Financial Instruments

The Company classifies all financial instruments as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, fair 
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables or other liabilities. Financial 
assets held-to maturity, loans and receivables and financial liabilities other than those classified 
as FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Available-for-
sale instruments are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in other 
comprehensive income (loss).  Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 
classified as FVTPL or other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL 
when the liability is either classified as held-for-trading or it is designated as FVTPL.  A
financial liability may be designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition if it forms part of a 
contract containing one or more embedded derivatives. Instruments classified as FVTPL are 
measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in net income (loss).  Other 
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method.  

Transaction costs associated with FVTPL financial assets are expensed as incurred, while 
transaction costs associated with all other financial liabilities are included in the initial carrying 
amount of the asset.

The Company has classified its financial instruments as follows:

Financial Instruments

Loans and 
Receivables

Other 
Financial 
Liabilities

FVTPL
As at December 

31, 2013

Cash 42,899$ -$ -$ 42,899$

Accounts receivable 23,012 - - 23,012

Accounts payable - 21,669 - 21,669

Accrued liabilities - 7,734 - 7,734

Royalties payable - 3,093 - 3,093

Senior and subordinate debt - 14,966 - 14,966

Notes payable - 5,766 - 5,766

Other liabilities - 20 - 20

Purchase consideration payable - - 24,385 24,385

65,911$ 53,248$ 24,385$ 143,544$
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described, as follows, 
based on the lowest-level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Valuations based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities;

Level 2: Valuations based on directly or indirectly observable inputs in active markets for 
similar assets or liabilities, other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted interest or currency 
exchange rates; and

Level 3: Valuations based on significant inputs that are not derived from observable market 
data, such as discounted cash flow methodologies based on internal cash flow forecasts.

Purchase price consideration payable is considered as level 2 financial instruments in the 
hierarchy.

(n) Warrants

In connection with the issuance of debt, the Company issued warrants denominated in a foreign 
currency, with an option for a cashless exercise in which the settlement price caused the
conversion ratio to be variable.  Accordingly the warrants were initially classified as a liability.  
Gains and losses on re-measurement are presented separately on the statement of income and 
comprehensive income.  The warrants were exercised via a cashless exercise during the period
ended December 31, 2013, with the change in fair value from the initial issuance of the 
warrants to the date of cashless exercise being recognized in the statement of income.  
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(o) Share Based Compensation

The Company has a stock option plan as described in Note 18 that allows for the issuance of 
stock options to employees, directors, officers, and others as determined by the Board of 
Directors. Under IFRS, each option installment is treated as a separate option grant with 
graded-vesting features, forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised if actual 
forfeitures are likely to differ from previous estimates, and options granted to parties other than 
employees are measured at their fair value on the date goods or services are received. The fair 
value of the goods and services received are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value 
of the instrument granted, unless the fair value of the goods and services received is readily 
apparent. Over the vesting period of the option grants, the fair value is recognized as 
compensation expense and a related credit is recorded as reserve for share-based compensation. 
The reserve for share-based compensation is reduced as options are exercised through a credit 
to share capital. The consideration paid by option holders is credited to share capital when the 
options are exercised.

(p) Earnings Per Share

Basic income per share is calculated by dividing the net income by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted income per share is 
calculated by dividing the applicable net earnings (loss) by the sum of the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year and all additional common shares that would 
have been outstanding if potentially dilutive common shares had been issued during the period.

(q) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in the consolidated statement of income when goods are supplied or 
made available to external customers against orders received and when title and risk of loss 
have passed. 

Revenue represents the amounts receivable after the deduction of discounts, harmonized sales 
tax, other sales taxes, allowances given, provisions for chargebacks, other price adjustments 
and accruals for estimated future rebates and returns. The methodology and assumptions used 
to estimate rebates and returns are monitored and adjusted in light of contractual and historical 
information.

(r) Inventory

Inventories consist of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods. Inventory is valued 
at the lower of cost based on weighted average price and net realizable value. Net realizable 
value is the estimated selling prices less applicable selling expenses and costs to complete. If 
the carrying value exceeds the net realizable value, a writedown is recognized. 

A reserve is taken on inventory for quantities not expected to be consumed. This reserve 
offsets the inventory balance. There were no reversals of inventory reserve for the period 
presented.
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

When preparing the consolidated financial statements, management undertakes a number of 
judgments, estimates and assumptions regarding recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses.  Information about the judgments, estimates and assumptions that have the 
most significant effect on the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses are discussed below.

Revenue recognition: 

i. Chargebacks

The provision for chargebacks is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of 
revenue. In the USA, Concordia sells its products directly to wholesale distributors. The 
wholesale distributors sell directly to independent pharmacies, managed care organizations, 
hospitals and group purchasing organizations (“indirect customers”). The difference between 
what price Concordia sells to the wholesaler and what price the Wholesaler sells to the indirect 
customer is called a chargeback. The provision for chargebacks is based on historical sales 
levels to Wholesalers. As sales are made to large Wholesale customers, Concordia continually 
monitors the provision for chargebacks and makes adjustments when it believes that actual 
chargebacks may differ from estimated provisions.

ii. Returns

The provision for returns is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of 
revenue. Concordia has a returns policy that allows Wholesalers to return the product within a 
specified period prior to and subsequent to the expiration date. Provisions for returns are 
recognized in the period in which the underlying sales are recognized, as a reduction of sales 
revenue. Concordia estimates provisions for returns based upon historical experience, 
representing management’s best estimate. While such experience has allowed for reasonable 
estimations in the past, history may not always be an accurate indicator of future returns. 
Concordia continually monitors provisions for returns and makes adjustments when it believes 
that actual product returns may differ from established reserves.

iii. Rebates

The provision for rebates is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of 
revenue. Rebates are granted to healthcare authorities and under contractual arrangements with 
certain customers. Products sold in the USA are covered by various programs (such as 
Medicaid and Medicare) under which products are sold at a discount. Concordia estimates its 
provisions for rebates based on current contractual terms and conditions as well as the 
historical experience, changes to business practices and credit terms. While such experience 
has allowed for reasonable estimations in the past, history may not always be an accurate 
indicator of future rebate liabilities. Concordia continually monitors the provision for rebates 
and makes adjustments when it believes that actual rebates may differ from establishes 
provisions. All rebates are recognized in the period in which the underlying sales are 
recognized as a reduction of sales revenue.
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iv. Other price adjustments

The provision for other price adjustments is a significant and complex estimate used in the 
recognition of revenue. Other price adjustments are credits issued by the Wholesaler to reflect 
various decreases in the selling price. The price that Concordia sells to the Wholesaler is called 
the Wholesale Acquisition Cost (or “WAC”). Decreases to WAC are discretionary decisions 
made by the Wholesalers to reflect competitive market conditions. Amounts recorded for other 
price adjustments are based upon estimated decline in market prices. Concordia regularly 
monitors these and other factors and re-evaluates the provision as additional information 
becomes available.

Share-based payments and compensation

The compensation expense related to share-based payments is determined using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model. The assumptions used in the model are weighted average share price at the 
grant date, exercise price, volatility, dividend yield, expected option life, forfeiture rate and risk free 
interest rate. Additional information is disclosed in Note 18.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company reviews amortized non-financial assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may be impaired. It also reviews 
annually non-financial assets with indefinite life for impairment. If the recoverable amount of the 
respective non-financial asset is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be impaired. In the 
process of measuring the recoverable amount, management makes assumptions about future events 
and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause significant adjustments.

Income taxes 

The Company is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions and therefore uses judgment to 
determine the provision for income taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the 
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Provisions for uncertain tax positions are recorded based on 
management’s estimate of the most likely outcome. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and 
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of warrants

The fair values of warrants that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation 
techniques.  The Company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions 
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Additional 
information is disclosed in notes 13.

Accounting for acquisitions

The Company assesses whether an acquisition should be accounted for as an asset acquisition or a 
business combination under IFRS 3.  This assessment requires management to make judgements on 
whether the assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 and if 
the integrated set of activities, including inputs, processes acquired, is capable of being conducted 
and managed as a business and the Company obtains control of the business.  The Company’s 
acquisitions have been accounted for as business combinations.

Other area of estimation includes the determination of the purchase price contingent consideration 
on business combinations, allowance for doubtful accounts, amortization rates and weighted average 
cost of capital used in various cash flow projections.
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4. Reverse Takeover Transaction

As described in Note 1, the Company entered into an amalgamation agreement on December 20, 
2013.  

Outstanding options to acquire the shares of Mercari Acquisition Corp. were also exchanged for 
options to acquire the shares of the Company.  The Mercari options were also converted on a basis 
of one option to acquire the Company’s stock for every 48.08 options existing immediately before 
the consolidation.  Options of the Company issued to Mercari option holders were valued using the 
Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following weighted average parameters:  Share price 
– CAD $4.81; Exercise price CAD $4.81; Dividend yield – NIL, expected volatility – 100% (based 
on historical performance of the common shares of other corporations with similar operations), risk 
free interest rate of 1.2%, and expected life of two years.  The options were valued at $64, and have 
been recorded as an expense during the year ended December 31, 2013.  The related credit has been 
recorded as a reserve for share-based compensation.

The purchase price has been allocated as follows:

Total

Cash 168$

Prepaid and other current assets 94

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (168)

Expensed as exchange listing expenses 1,594

1,688$

Consideration Comprised of:

Conversion of Mercari shares to common stock of Concordia 1,624$

Share-based payment 64

1,688$
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5. Acquisitions

The Shionogi Transaction

CPI acquired its legacy pharmaceutical business assets from Shionogi Inc. (“Shionogi”) on May 6, 
2013 through a business combination. These legacy pharmaceutical assets are comprised of three 
FDA approved drug patents: Kapvay (patent), which is used to effectively treat Attention Deficit
Hyperactivity Disorder, Ulesfia (patent), which is a topical treatment for pediculosis (head lice), and 
Orapred (in-Licenced third party patent), an anti-inflammatory used in the treatment of certain 
pulmonary diseases such as asthma. 

The purchase price paid to Shionogi was $28,704 comprised of $27,912 in cash consideration and 
$792 of contingent consideration. 

Following closing, as additional consideration for the sale, transfer, conveyance and assignment of 
the assets and the grant of the Ulesfia license, CPI must pay Shionogi thirty percent (30%) of 
worldwide Net Sales of Kapvay and Royalty Income relating to Kapvay if sales exceed $1,500,000 
(in the aggregate) during each Calendar Quarter commencing with the Calendar Quarter beginning 
October 1, 2013 (the “Kapvay Contingency Payments”) until the Kapvay Contingency Payments 
equal $6,000,000 in the aggregate or when the Kapvay exclusivity patent expires, whichever is 
earlier.

As the Company expects to meet some of the sales requirements, a provision for the purchase price 
contingent consideration payable in the amount of $792,000 has been recorded as additional 
purchase price. This amount is shown as a current liability and therefore has not been discounted.

The purchase price has been allocated as follows:

The goodwill arising on acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

The Global Medical Direct Transaction

CHUSA acquired its specialty healthcare distribution business assets from Global Medical Direct 
LLC and affiliated entities (collectively “Global”) on October 25, 2013 with an effective date of 
August 1, 2013. 

The Company’s specialty healthcare distribution business is a United States national Internet and 
mail-order provider of diabetes testing supplies, pharmaceuticals, diabetic shoes, orthotic braces and 
other home medical equipment. This business also includes a full-service pharmacy with full 
fulfillment capacity and can ship medications across the United States.  

Total

Brands 26,020$

Goodwill 372

Inventory 2,312

28,704$

Consideration Comprised of:

Cash 27,912$

Purchase price contingent consideration payable 792

28,704$
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The Company acquired the specialty healthcare distribution business for total consideration of 
$13,157 comprised of $5,000 of cash, a vendor note with a fair value on the date of acquisition of 
$5,625 and an additional earn-out payment with an estimated present value of $2,532 payable in 
Common Shares of Concordia, subject to meeting certain performance metrics as described in Note 
20.

The purchase price has been allocated as follows:

The goodwill arising on acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

The Pinnacle Biologics, Inc. Transaction

On November 8, 2013 Concordia, through its wholly owned subsidiary Concordia Labs Inc. (“CLI”)
entered into the Pinnacle Purchase Agreement.  Pursuant to the Pinnacle Purchase Agreement, on 
December 20, 2013, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Pinnacle Biologics Inc. for total
consideration of $58,017 comprised of $32,672 of cash consideration, $5,000 of common shares 
issued at a price of CAD $5.63 per common share, 10 annual cash payments with an estimated 
present value of $5,019 and milestone and other contingency payments with an estimated value of 
$15,326, subject to meeting certain milestone and performance targets.

Total

Cash 1,424$

Accounts receivable 1,958

Inventory 404

Prepaid and other current assets 113

Fixed assets 169

Goodwill 7,923

Customer list 3,000

Accounts payable (1,165)

Income taxes payable (646)

Lease obligations (23)

13,157$

Consideration Comprised of:

Cash 5,000$

Notes payable 5,625

Purchase price contingent consideration payable 2,532

13,157$
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The purchase price has been allocated as follows:

The goodwill arising on acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.

6. Accounts Receivable

As at December 31, 2013, there are no accounts receivable past due.

Total

Cash 4,901$

Accounts Receivable 1,600

Inventory 1,627

Prepaid and other current assets 1,376

Fixed assets 197

Deferred Taxes (6,038)

Goodwill 27,954

Intellectual property 32,800

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (5,259)

Other Liabilities (1,141)

58,017$

Consideration Comprised of:

Cash 32,672$

Common Stock 5,000

Present value of annual payments 5,019

Purchase price contingent consideration payable 15,326

58,017$

As at December 31, 
2013

Accounts Receivable 23,373$

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (361)

Net Accounts Receivable 23,012$
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7. Inventory

Inventory amounts charged to cost of sales during the year is $5,813.  There were no inventory 
write-downs charged to cost of sales during the year, other than the current reserve.

8. Fixed Assets

Additions include the fair value of fixed assets acquired in the acquisitions of Global Medical Direct 
LLC and Pinnacle Biologics, Inc.

As at December 31, 
2013

Finished goods 2,713$

Raw materials and work in process 1,634

Obsolete inventory (317)

Inventory (net of obsolescence reserve) 4,030$

Cost

Computers 
and IT 

Equipment

Office 
Furniture 

and Fixtures

Leasehold 
Improvemen

ts
Equipment

As at 
December 31, 

2013

Opening Balance -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Additions 28 90 28 343 489

Dispositions - - - - -

Total 28$ 90$ 28$ 343$ 489$

Depreciation

Opening Balance -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Additions 2 3 - 40 45

Dispositions - - - - -

Total 2 3 - 40 45

Net Book Value 26$ 87$ 28$ 303$ 444$
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9. Intangible Assets

Brands, trademarks and patents were acquired as part of the Shionogi transaction as described in 
Note 5.  The brands, trademarks and patents are indefinite life intangible assets and are therefore not 
amortized, and have been tested for impairment as at December 31, 2013.  Based on the impairment 
test no impairment of the intangible asset is required as at December 31, 2013. 

The intangible asset related to the customer list was acquired effective August 1, 2013 as part of the 
Global Medical Group transaction as described in Note 5.  The customer list is subject to 
amortization and has been determined to have a useful life of 4 years and 5 months.  Amortization of 
$120 has been recorded in the year ended December 31, 2013.  

The intellectual property was acquired on December 20, 2013 as part of the acquisition of Pinnacle 
Biologics Inc. as described in Note 5 and is amortized over a period of 15 years.

Each of the brands is considered to have an indefinite life, given the strength and durability of the 
brand and intellectual property and the level of marketing support.  

The brands are in relatively similar stable and profitable market sectors, with similar risk profiles, 
and their size, diversification and market shares mean that the risk of market related factors causing 
a reduction in the lives of the brands is considered to be low.

The Company performed its annual impairment tests at the year-end and determined that there was 
no impairment on its indefinite life intangibles. The Company determined the recoverable amount 
based on value-in-use, which was calculated using a cash flow projection for each of the brands over 
a period of five years and a terminal value.  The projected cash flows included a growth rate of 5% 
and were discounted using a discount rate of 20%.

10. Goodwill

Goodwill was acquired in the acquisitions described in Note 5.

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there exist 
any indications of impairment.  As at December 31, 2013 there were no impairment and no 
impairment loss has been recognized. The Company determined the recoverable amount based on 
value-in-use, which was calculated using a cash flow projection for each of CGUs over a period of 
five years and a terminal value.  The projected cash flows included a growth rate of 5% and were 
discounted using a discount rate of 20%.

Brands, 
Trademarks 
and Patents

Customer
List

Intellectual 
Property

As at December 31, 
2013

Opening Balance -$ -$ -$ -$

Additions 26,020 3,000 32,800 61,820

Amortization - (120) - (120)

Total 26,020$ 2,880$ 32,800$ 61,700$

As at December 31, 
2013

Opening balance -$

Additions 39,264

Impairment -

Total 39,264$
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11. Provisions

The below table sets forth movements in the Company’s provisions balance during the year ended 
December 31, 2013:

The closing balance relates to provisions made to estimate the liabilities arising from chargebacks, 
returns, rebates and other price adjustments as explained in Note 3. Although these estimates and 
provisions relate to revenue recognition transactions, namely the sales of products, the payments 
made for the underlying transactions are made directly to the claimants concerned and not to the
original customer. Payments are expected within 12 months from the balance sheet date. Invoices 
received for such charges and estimates are shown in the Accounts Payable when received. The 
provision is for the uninvoiced portion of the charges and estimates.

12. Income Taxes

Income tax expense is recognized based on management’s best estimate of the weighted average 
annual income tax rate expected for the full financial year.  The 2013 average rate used in the period 
ended September 30, 2013 for Canada, USA and Barbados were 26.5%, 34.66% and 2.26% 
respectively.

In Barbados, the Concordia subsidiary is classified as an International Business Corporations 
(“IBC”) where there is a sliding scale corporate tax rate with a ceiling rate of 2.5% on income up to 
Barbados Dollar (“BBD”) $10 million and a minimum floor rate of 0.5% when income exceeds 
BBD$30 million.  The rate declines by 0.5% for each incremental BBD$10 million until the floor 
rate is achieved.

The difference between the amount of the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by 
multiplying income before taxes by the statutory Canadian and Barbados rates are reconciled as 
follows: 

As at December 31, 
2013

Opening Balance -$

Additions 49,775

Utilization (25,567)

Closing Balance 24,208$

As at December 31,

2013

Profit before income taxes $ 2,856
Income tax at Canadian corporate tax rate 26.5% 757
Difference in tax rates of foreign subsidiary (5,267)
Tax effect of permanent differences – Canada at 
26.5% 2,009
Other 70

$ 425
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Deferred income tax:
Other non-deductible reserves $ 151

Deferred income tax assets 151
Property and equipment (84)
Intangibles (6,458)
Deferred income tax 
liabilities, net $ (6,391)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry-forward or unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax 
losses/credits can be utilized.  The following represent the deductible temporary differences which 
have not been recognized in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets:

Non-capital loss carry-forward $ 3,679

Share issue costs 3,157

Unrealized foreign exchange 64

Property and equipment 2

$ 6,902

The following table summarizes the Company’s non-capital losses that can be applied against future taxable 
profit:

Country Amount Expiry date

Canada $6,902 2033

13. Debt Financing and Warrants

Term Facilities and Warrants

On May 6 2013, the Company entered into two loan and security agreements: (1) a loan under a 
senior loan agreement (including a working capital loan) (the “Senior Loan Agreement”) in the 
principal amount of $19,000 bearing interest at 12% per annum, calculated daily, maturing on 
October 30, 2015 with interest paid monthly in arrears, and (2) two loans under a subordinate loan 
agreement (the “Subordinate Loan Agreement”) in the aggregate principal amount of $5,150 bearing 
interest at 18% per annum, calculated daily, maturing on October 30, 2015 with interest paid 
monthly in arrears only if the loan under the Senior Loan Agreement is repaid.  The Senior Loan 
Agreement included a working capital loan of $3,000 where the interest rate was 12%. The working 
capital loan was repaid and cancelled on August 7, 2013. 

The debt features mandatory repayments based on free cash flow generated by the business as 
defined in the Senior Loan Agreement and the Subordinate Loan Agreement, calculated monthly.
The loans are subject to a prepayment feature and repayment on demand at any time should certain 
events of default occur. For the period ended and as at December 31, 2013 no such defaults 
occurred.  The Company has granted security over all of its assets.  
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The debt is subject to certain financial covenants and the Company was in compliance for the year 
ended, December 31, 2013.

In connection with the transaction, the lenders were also issued warrants exercisable for an 
aggregate of 1,875,000 common shares of Concordia at an exercise price of CAD $1.00 for a period 
of 5 years.  The warrants also provided for a cashless exercise option in which the settlement price 
would be calculated using the volume weighted average trading price of the Company’s common 
shares on the TSX for the three-day period immediately prior to the date of exercise.  Warrants 
issued to the lender were initially valued at $4,531 and recorded as a derivative financial instrument. 

A pricing model with observable market based inputs was used to estimate the fair value of all the 
warrants issued. The variables used to compute the values were as follows:  an expected life of five 
years; a risk free rate of 0.78%; a volatility rate of 78.6%; and an exercise price of $1.0.  The 
warrants had an average fair value of $2.41 per warrant.

On October 25, 2013, additional warrants were issued to one of the lenders exercisable for an 
aggregate of 39,465 common shares of Concordia.  These warrants were exercisable for a period of 
5 years at an exercise price of $3.00, and contained a similar cashless exercise option. These 
additional warrants were valued at $76.

A pricing model with observable market based inputs was used to estimate the fair value of the 
warrants issued. The variables used to compute the values were as follows:  an expected life of five 
years; a risk free rate of 1.63%; a volatility rate of 79.9%; and an exercise price of $3.0.  The 
warrants had an average fair value of $1.93 per warrant.

On December 20, 2013, immediately prior to the Company’s listing on the TSX, all of the warrants 
were exercised by the warrant holders under the cashless exercise option.  The settlement price of 
the cashless exercise was CAD $6.25, representing the opening per share price of the Company’s 
stock upon its listing on the TSX. Upon the cashless exercise, the warrants were revalued to their 
fair market value, which was calculated as $9,255.  The fair value was determined to be equal to the 
share price on that day. The increase in fair market value of the warrants from their initial valuations 
was recorded as an expense of $4,648.  

The two loan and security agreements have been segregated into their respective debt and warrant 
components, the debt component representing the present value of the debt, and the warrant 
derivative financial instrument representing the fair value of the warrants.  The debt component is
accreted to the face value of the loan over the expected life of the loan using the effective interest 
method.  The debt component of the loan is presented net of financing costs of $1,100.  The 
financing costs are recognized as an expense over the term of the loan.  Interest expense and 
accretion expense amount to $1,948 and $4,287 respectively for the year ended December 31, 2013.  
The effective interest rate has been determined to be 51.32%.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value of the long-term debt approximates its carrying value of 
$14,966.
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Senior and subordinated debt as at December 31, 2013 is summarized as follows:

Credit Facility

On September 19, 2013 the Company entered into a senior secured revolving credit facility (the 
“Revolving Facility”) in the principal amount of $3,000.  The revolving credit facility is for working 
capital requirements and is repayable on demand.  Loans under the Revolving Facility are repayable 
without any prepayment penalties, and bear interest at a floating rate based on the HSBC’s US Base 
Rate plus 2.25% per annum.

Pursuant to the Revolving Facility, the Company has granted security over all of its assets.

The Company has not borrowed against this facility and there is no balance outstanding against this 
facility as at December 31, 2013. 

14. Notes Payable

The notes payable of $5,766 as at December 31, 2013 represents the fair value of the notes issued by 
the Company related to the acquisition of Global as described in Note 5.  The notes are unsecured, 
have a total face value of $7,000 and a coupon interest rate of 6%.  The notes have been recorded at 
the present value of expected payments with a market representative interest rate of 12%.  Interest 
expense and accretion expense amount to $112 and $35 respectively for the year ended December 
31, 2013.  The effective interest rate has been determined to be 13.67%.

Principal repayments are due subject to the achievement of certain EBITDA thresholds.

As at December 31, 
2013

Face value of the loans on issuance 21,150$                      
Less:
Fair value of warrants issued (4,607)
Transaction costs (1,100)
Book value upon issuance 15,443
Repayment of principal (5,408)
Accretion interest 4,287
Carrying value at December 31, 2013 14,322
Accrued interest 644
Senior and Subordinate Debt 14,966$                    
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15. Purchase Consideration Payable

An estimate of the range of outcomes for the contingent purchase consideration is as follows:

Contingent Purchase Consideration Payable Lower range Upper range
Due to Shionogi $Nil $6,000
Due to former owner of Global Medical Direct LLC $Nil $4,000
Due to former owners of Pinnacle Biologics Inc. $5,000 $42,500

As at December 31, 2013, the fair value of the contingent purchase consideration payable did not 
change from their original amount.

16. Share Capital

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares. 

On May 5, 2013 CHI completed a private placement of 6,000,000 common shares at a price of $1.00 
per share.  Total proceeds from the transaction were $6,000. 

On various dates in August of 2013, CHI completed private placements of a total of 1,166,666 
shares at a price of $3.00 per share.  Total proceeds from the transaction were $3,500.   

On October 25, 2013 CHI issued an additional 1,000,000 common shares as compensation for 
consulting services and finder’s fees related to the Global Medical transaction described in Note 5.
The value of the consulting services and finder’s fees was $3,000. The value was based on recent 
private placements for the shares of the Company at $3 each.

On December 19, 2013 CHI completed a private placement (the “Private Placement”) of 
subscription receipts (the “Subscription Receipts”) conducted by a syndicate of agents.  Pursuant to 
the private placement, CHI issued 5,520,000 Subscription Receipts at a price of CAD $6.25 
Canadian Dollars per Subscription Receipt.  Each Subscription Receipt was exchanged for one 
common share of CHI, which common shares were then exchanged for Common Shares of 
Concordia Healthcare Corp. on a one-for-one basis pursuant to the Company’s Qualifying 

As at December 
31, 2013

Contingent purchase consideration

Due to Shionogi Inc. 792$

Due to former owner of Global medical Direct LLC 2,532

Due to former owners of Pinnacle Biologics Inc. 15,326

Total contingent purchase consideration 18,650$

Non-contingent purchase consideration

Fair value of annual payments due to former owners of Pinnacle biologics inc. 5,019$

Consideration payable assumed on acquisition of Pinnacle Biologics Inc. 716

Total non-contingent purchase consideration 5,735$

Total purchase consideration payable  $                 24,385 

Less: Current portion (2,786)

Purchase consideration payable 21,599$
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Transaction.  Net proceeds from the transaction were $29,563 after deducting transaction expenses 
and underwriters’ fees of $2,846.

In connection with the Private Placement, the Company issued 220,800 agent’s options (the 
“Agent’s Options”) to the syndicate of agents that conducted the Private Placement.  Each Agent 
Option is exchangeable for one common share of the Company at an exercise price of CAD $6.25
for a period of one year.  The Agent’s Options have been valued using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model at $422 and this amount has been offset against the net proceeds from the Private 
Placement.  

A pricing model with observable market based inputs was used to estimate the fair value of the 
options issued. The variables used to compute the values were as follows:  an expected life of one
year; a risk free rate of 0.96%; a volatility rate of 81.03%; and an exercise price of $5.87.  The 
warrants had an average fair value of $1.87 per option.

As described in note 1, on December 20, 2013 the Company entered into an amalgamation 
agreement and completed its Qualifying Transaction.  The Qualifying Transaction proceeded by 
way of a “three-cornered” amalgamation among Mercari Acquisition Corp., Mercari Subco Inc., and 
CHI.  On December 18, 2013, and prior to the completion of the Qualifying Transaction, Mercari 
changed its name to “Concordia Healthcare Corp.” and completed a consolidation of its share capital 
on a basis of one post-consolidation common share for every 48.08 common shares existing 
immediately before the consolidation. This resulted in the former shareholders of Mercari owning 
276,616 shares of Concordia Healthcare Corp, prior to the Qualifying Transaction.  

Prior to the Qualifying Transaction, as described in Note 13, all warrants issued by the Company in 
connection with the Senior Loan Agreement and Subordinate Loan Agreement were exercised 
pursuant to a cashless exercise option.  As a result of this exercise, CHI issued common shares of 
1,576,385 to the warrant holders.  

On December 20, 2013, immediately prior to the Qualifying Transaction, CHI issued 946,222 
common shares at a price of CAD $5.625 per common share (being a 10% discount to the price of 
the Subscription Receipts issued under the Private Placement) in connection with the acquisition of 
Pinnacle Biologics, Inc. (as described in Note 5).

On December 20, 2013 pursuant to the Qualifying Transaction, all common shares of CHI were 
exchanged on a one-for-one basis for shares of Concordia Healthcare Corp. 

The below table sets forth changes in issued and outstanding common shares and warrants for the 
period from incorporation to December 31, 2013.

Common 
Shares

Warrants
Common 
Shares

Warrant 
Liability

Issued on Incorporation 1,500,000 - -$ -$

Issuance of Common Shares - May Private Placement 6,000,000 - 6,000 -

Issuance of Warrants related to Term Facilities - 1,875,000 - 4,531

Issuance of Common Shares - August Private Placement 1,166,666 - 3,500 -

Issuance of Common Shares - Global Transaction 1,000,000 - 3,000 -

Issuance of Warrants related to Term Facilities - 39,465 - 76

Issuance of Common Shares - December Private Placement 5,520,000 - 29,142 -

Issuance of Common Shares to Mercari on Amalgamation 276,616 - 1,624 -

Issuance of Common Shares - Acquisition of Pinnacle 946,222 - 5,000 -

Cashless exercise of Warrants related to term facilities 1,576,385 (1,914,465) 9,255 (4,607)

Balance as at December 31, 2013 17,985,889 - 57,521$ -$

Number of Amount
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17. Earnings Per Share

18. Share Based Compensation

The Company has an incentive stock option plan that permits it to grant options to acquire common 
shares to its directors, officers, employees, and others, up to a maximum number of 2,697,883
options, as determined by the Board of Directors. The option exercise price is equal to or greater 
than the fair market value of the Company's common shares at the date of grant. As at December 
31, 2013, a total of 1,322,883 stock options were available for grant under the plan. 

The Company granted options to four executive officers, one employee and four non-management 
members of the Board of Directors during the year ended December 31, 2013.  

The Black-Sholes model was used to compute option values.  Key assumptions used to value each 
grant are set forth in the table below:

Exercise price for each of the stock options issued agreed to the market prices at the date of issue.

As historical volatility of the Company’s common shares is not available, expected volatility is 
based on the historical performance of the common shares of other corporations with similar 
operations.

year ended 
December 31, 

2013
Net Income for the year attributable to shareholders 2,431$

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 6,332,281

Adjustments for:

Dilutive Stock Options and agent warrants 100,106

Weighted average number of fully diluted shares 6,432,387$

Earnings per share:

Basic 0.38$

Diluted 0.38$

Date of Grant August 8,
2013

September 3, 
2013

October 17, 
2013

December 20, 
2013

Number of options granted 500,000 525,000 100,000 250,000
Market price 3.00$             3.00$             3.00$             5.87$             
Fair value of each option grant 1.07$             1.13$             1.44$             3.15$             

Assumptions:
Risk-Free Interest Rate 0.96% 0.96% 1.63% 1.63%
Expected Life 2 2 3 3
Volatility 64.16% 68.27% 72.19% 82.46%
Expected Forfeitures NIL NIL NIL NIL
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All the options issued have different vesting terms ranging from immediate vesting to vesting over a 
period of 3 years.  All options issued have a life of 10 years.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the total compensation charged against income with respect 
to all stock options granted was $1,070. An amount of $1,070 has been recognized in shareholders’ 
equity related to these options. 

Information with respect to stock option transactions for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as 
follows:

As at December 31, 2013 outstanding stock options were as follows:

19. Related Party Transactions

The Company has related party relationships with its subsidiaries and key management personnel.  
Key management personnel include the Board of Directors, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer and the Managing Director of CPI.  

The below table sets forth details of the transactions between the Company and related parties:

Number of 
Stock 

Options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price
Opening Balance - -
Granted during the year 1,621,798 3.86$             
Expired during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Balance as at December 31, 2013 1,621,798 3.86$             

Year of 
Expiry

Exercise 
Price

Number of 
Shares

Shares 
Vested

2023 3.00$             1,125,000 750,000
2023 5.87$             470,800 220,800
2023 4.52$             25,998 25,998

1,621,798 996,798
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(a) Compensation includes salaries, bonuses and directors fees.

(b) This includes the amortised cost of the share-based compensation issued during the period.

(c) Legal fees include professional services for advice relating to intellectual property, corporate securities and 
other matters.

(d) This relates to fees and interest paid for a loan, where two of the directors were officers of the lender. The 
loan for $3,000,000 was repaid during the period.

20. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments 

The Company leases facilities under operating leases in Canada, Barbados and the United States.  
The leases typically run for a period of months up to five years.  

The below table sets forth the Company’s obligations under operating leases:

The Canadian facility lease expires on April 30, 2018 with an option to renew the lease for an 
additional 5 years after that date. 

The Barbados office lease expires in October of 2016. 

The facility leases in the United States all expire during 2014. 

Contingency Payments

Contingency payments related to acquisitions have been disclosed in Note 5, and are described in 
further detail below. 

Following the closing of the Shionogi Transaction as described in Note 5, as additional 
consideration for the sale, transfer, conveyance and assignment of the assets and the grant of the 
Ulesfia license, the Company is required to pay Shionogi thirty percent (30%) of worldwide net 

For the year 
ended December 

31, 2013

Compensation of key management and directors(a) 1,192$

Share based compensation (b) 979

Legal fees paid or payable to firms affiliated with directors (c) 139

Finance fees paid to firms affiliated with directors (d) 150

Interest costs paid and payable to firms affiliated with directors (d) 98

2,558$
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sales of Kapvay that exceeds $1,500 (in the aggregate) during each calendar quarter commencing 
with the calendar quarter beginning October 1, 2013 until such payments equal $6,000 in the 
aggregate.

As part of the consideration for the Global Medical Direct Transaction, as described in Note 5, the 
Company is obligated to pay an additional earn-out payment of up to $4,000 payable in Common 
Shares subject to meeting certain performance metrics.  The earn-out payment provisions provide 
that on each earnout calculation date, if the aggregate adjusted EBITDA of Global exceeds $7,000
for the preceding year then an earnout payment of common shares will be made which is equal in 
value to the aggregate adjusted EBITDA of Global for the preceding year multiplied by 
14.285714%. The number of common chares to be paid is calculated by dividing the dollar value of 
the earnout payment by the dollar volume weighted average trading price of the common shares.
The aggregate earnout payments are subject to a $4,000 cap.

As part of the consideration for the Pinnacle Biologics Inc. Transaction, as described in Note 5, the 
Company is obligated to pay additional payments of up to $5,000 based on the achievement of 
certain milestones related to clinical trials.  The Company is also obligated to pay additional earn-
out payments equal to 15% of worldwide sales of Photofrin in excess of $25,000 over the 10 
calendar years following the Company’s acquisition of Pinnacle.

Royalties

The Company has a commitment to pay royalties on sales of each of the drugs acquired as part of 
the Shionogi Transaction at certain prescribed rates.  These royalties are payable on a quarterly 
basis. 

Guarantees

All directors and officers of the Company, and each of the Company’s various subsidiaries, are 
indemnified by the Company for various items including, but not limited to, all costs to settle 
lawsuits or actions due to their association with the Company, subject to certain restrictions.  The 
Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to mitigate the cost of any 
potential future lawsuits or actions. 

In the normal course of business, the Company has entered into agreements that include indemnities 
in favor of third parties, such as purchase and sale agreements, confidentiality agreements, 
engagement letters with advisors and consultants, leasing contracts, license agreements, information 
technology agreements and various product, service, data hosting and network access agreements. 
These indemnification arrangements may require the applicable Concordia entity to compensate 
counterparties for losses incurred by the counterparties as a result of breaches in representations, 
covenants and warranties provided by the particular Concordia entity or as a result of litigation or 
other third party claims or statutory sanctions that may be suffered by the counterparties as a 
consequence of the relevant transaction.

Litigation and Arbitration

In the normal course of business the Company may be the subject of litigation claims.   As at 
December 31, 2013 there are no claims against the Company.

21. Financial Instruments and Management of Risk

The Company’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, including currency risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  

Currency Risk
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The Company is exposed to currency risk related to the fluctuation of foreign exchange rates. The 
Company operates primarily in United States dollars. The Company’s Barbados office incurs a small 
number of transactions in Barbados dollars and has a small bank balance, the totals of which are 
considered to have an insignificant effect on financial reporting. The Company has not entered into 
any foreign exchange derivative contracts. 

The Company does not believe it is exposed to currency risk on its net assets denominated in 
Barbados dollars as the currency is fixed to the U.S. dollar.  The Company, however, is exposed to 
currency risk though its net assets denominated in Canadian dollars.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has a fixed interest rate of 12% 
and 18% on its senior and subordinate debt.  Contingent consideration payable and notes payable are
also subject to interest rate risk as their fair value is based on cash flows which are discounted at a 
rate that could change based on market rates of interest.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation. Financial instruments that potentially expose the 
Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and other receivables. The 
Company’s investment policies are designed to mitigate the possibility of deterioration of principal, 
enhance the Company’s ability to meet its liquidity needs and provide high returns within those 
parameters.  Cash is on deposit with a Canadian chartered bank located in Canada and Barbados. 
Management monitors the collectability of accounts receivable and estimates an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. As at December 31, 2013, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $361.

The Company has concentration risk, as approximately 26.29 % of its accounts receivable are due 
from 6 customers.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial liability 
obligations as they become due. The Company has a planning and budgeting process in place to 
help determine the funds required to support the Company's normal operating requirements on an 
ongoing basis. Since inception, the Company has financed its cash requirements primarily through 
issuances of securities, short-term borrowings and issuances of long-term debt. The Company 
controls liquidity risk through management of working capital, cash flows and the availability and 
sourcing of financing.  The Company’s ability to accomplish all of its future strategic plans is 
dependent upon obtaining additional financing or executing other strategic options; however.

The following table summarizes the Company’s significant contractual undiscounted cash flows as 
at December 31, 2013:

As at 
December 31, 

2013
CDN$

Cash 1,171

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,297)

(1,126)
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Fair Value

The fair value of the purchase consideration payable and notes payable was determined using a 
Level II valuation technique by using discounted cash flow models that use discount rates that 
reflect the Company’s borrowing rate as at December 31, 2013. The Company’s own non-
performance risk was assessed to be insignificant as at December 31, 2013.

22. Capital Management

The Company’s capital management objectives are to safeguard its ability to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by ensuring it has sufficient cash resources to fund 
its activities, to pursue its commercialization efforts and to maintain its ongoing operations. The 
Company includes long-term debt and shareholders’ equity in the definition of capital. 

The below table sets forth the Company’s capital structure:

23. Segmented Reporting

Operating Segments

The Company has three reportable operating segments: The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division, The 
Orphan Drugs Division and The Specialty Healthcare Distribution Division.  A brief description of 
each segment follows below. 

The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division

The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division focuses on the management and acquisition of legacy 
pharmaceutical products, both with patent life and exclusivity remaining (pre-legacy) and products 
that have reached full maturity but continue on a predictable revenue generation path, collectively 

Financial Instruments < 3 months
3 to 6 

months
6 months to 

1 year
1 to 2 
years

2 to 5 years Thereafter Total

Accounts payable an accrued liabilities 29,403$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 29,403$

Provisions 2,421 6,052 15,735 - - - 24,208

Royalties payable - 3,093 - - - - 3,093

Taxes payable - 987 - - - - 987

Senior and subordinate debt 16,830 - - - - - 16,830

Current portion of purchase consideration payable - - 2,786 - - - 2,786

Notes payable - - - 1,800 4,200 1,000 7,000

Purchase consideration payable - - - 1,527 9,815 39,744 51,086

48,654$ 10,132$ 18,521$ 3,327$ 14,015$ 40,744$ 135,393$

As at December 31, 
2013

Senior and subordinate debt 14,966$

Notes payable 5,766

Stockholders' Equity 61,522

82,254$
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referred to as legacy products. The Legacy Pharmaceuticals Division acquired its legacy 
pharmaceutical business assets from Shionogi Inc. on May 6, 2013.

The Orphan Drugs Division

The Orphan Drugs Division is intended to provide growth opportunities through the expansion into 
new indications for existing legacy products or the acquisition of approved orphan drugs and further 
expansion within their identified markets.  The operations of the Company’s Orphan Drugs Division 
were created through the acquisition of Pinnacle Biologics Inc. on December 20, 2013.

The Speciality Healthcare Distribution Division

The Speciality Healthcare Distribution Division is a nation-wide provider of diabetes testing 
supplies, pharmaceuticals, diabetic shoes, orthotic braces and other home medical equipment in the 
United States.  The Specialty Healthcare Distribution Division acquired its specialty healthcare 
distribution business assets from Global Medical Direct LLC and affiliated entities on October 25, 
2013.  The acquisition had an effective date of August 1, 2013, however the date on which control 
was obtained was October 25, 2013.  Global’s results have been consolidated from October 25, 2013 
in the financial statements of Concordia.

The below table sets forth operating income, total assets and total liabilities by reportable operating 
segment for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Included in general and administrative expenses are salaries and benefits of $3,246 paid during the 
year.

Legacy 
Pharmaceuticals

Orphan 
Drugs

Specialty 
Healthcare 

Distribution
Corporate Eliminations FY 2013

Revenue 36,884$                10$             3,553$              2,889$              (2,889)$             40,447$      
Cost of sales 7,391 34 913 - - 8,338
Gross profit 29,493 (24) 2,640 2,889 (2,889) 32,109

Operating expenses
General & administrative 4,209 160 1,609 2,498 - 8,476
Selling 1,857 - 607 - 2,464
Management Fees 2,889 - - - (2,889) -
Share based compensation - - - 1,070 - 1,070
Exchange listing expenses - - - 2,404 - 2,404
Acquisition related costs - 367 3,325 - - 3,692
Depreciation expense 3 - 12 3 - 18

Total operating expenses 8,958$                527$         5,553$            5,975$            (2,889)$           18,124$    

Operating income 20,535$              (551)$        (2,913)$           (3,086)$           -$                 13,985$    
Interest and accretion expense - - - 6,382 - 6,382
Change in fair value of derivative warrants - - - 4,648 4,648
Income taxes 238 - 187 - 425

Total Assets 97,476$                69,858$      11,718$            62,299$            (70,586)$           170,765$ 

Total Liabilities 49,341$                32,225$      7,516$              20,161$            -$                 109,243$ 
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Geographic Segments

The Company’s revenue by country of origin of external customer is all in the United States. 

The Company has operations in Barbados, Canada and the United States.  The below table sets forth 
assets and liabilities by geographic location (excluding inter-company balances and investments in 
subsidiaries):

Revenue from transactions with 5 customers constitutes 83% of the Company’s revenue. 

24. Subsequent Events

Financing

On March 11, 2014 the Company announced the completion of a short-form prospectus offering, on 
a “bought deal” basis of 5,750,000 common shares of Concordia, which includes the exercise by the
Underwriters of an over-allotment option of 15%, for aggregate gross proceeds of CAD 
$67,562,500. Net proceeds to the Company, after the deduction of underwriters’ fees were CAD 
$63,508,750.

The Offering was completed at a price per Common Share of CAD $11.75 by a syndicate of 
underwriters co-led by GMP Securities L.P. and Canaccord Genuity Corp. and including Barclays 
Capital Canada Inc., Beacon Securities Limited and Cormark Securities Inc.

Acquisition of Donnatal®

On March 20, 2014 the Company announced that it has entered into a definitive agreement to 
acquire Donnatal®, an adjunctive therapy in the treatment of irritable bowel syndrome (“IBS”) and 
acute enterocolitis, from a privately held specialty pharmaceutical company carrying on business as 
Revive Pharmaceuticals (“Revive Pharmaceuticals”).

The Company has agreed to acquire Donnatal® for US$200 million in cash and an aggregate of 
4,605,833 common shares of Concordia. The common shares issuable have an aggregate value of 
approximately US$65.3 million based on the closing trading price of the Company’s common shares 
on the Toronto Stock Exchange on March 18, 2014, and represent approximately 16.19% of the 
Company’s outstanding common shares on a non-diluted basis (approximately 14.99% on a fully-
diluted basis) after giving effect to the acquisition.  Revive Pharmaceuticals will also be entitled to 
have a representative nominated to the board of directors of the Company provided that it maintains 
a certain shareholding level in the Company. Completion of the acquisition is subject to customary 
closing conditions (including approval of the TSX), and acceptable financing. 

Barbados Canada United States
As at 

December 31, 
2013

Current assets 54,416$                4,656$        13,292$            72,372$            
Non-current assets 26,456 38 71,907 98,393
Total Assets 80,872 4,694 85,199 170,765

Current liabilities 49,341 19,137 7,627 76,105
Non-current liabilities - - 33,138 33,138
Total Liabilities 49,341$              19,137$    40,765$          109,243$        
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Management anticipates that the deal will close in the second quarter of 2014. Management plans to 
pay for the cash component of the acquisition through a combination of available cash and debt 
financing. Accordingly, the Company has entered into a commitment letter with GE Capital, 
Healthcare Financial Services and its affiliated entities (“GE”). Pursuant to the commitment letter, 
GE has agreed to provide a secured credit facility having a principal amount of up to US$195 
million, consisting of a $170 million term loan and a $25 million operating line (the “Credit 
Facility”). The Credit Facility will be secured by the assets of the Company and the assets of its 
subsidiaries. The Credit Facility is subject to a number of customary conditions, including entering 
into definitive documentation.

Senior and subordinate debt

On March 28, 2014, the Company repaid in full its senior and subordinated debt.
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